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Whitehorse, Yukon Territory 
r November 28, 1977 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to order. 
We will proceed at this time with Morning Prayers . 

Prayers 
Mr. Speaker: We will proceed at th is time with the Order 

Paper . 

ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any documents or correspondence 
for tabling this morning ? The Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse North Centre? 

TABLING OF DOCUMENTS 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Speaker, pursuant to Section 

18.(1 ) of the Electrical Public Utilities Ordinance I have for 
tabling the annual report of the Electrical Publ,ic Utilities 
Board, for the year ending March 31st, 1977. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any Reports of Committees? 
Petitions? 
Introduction of Bills? 
Are there any Notices of Motion for the Production of Pap

ers? The Honourable Member from Ogilvie? 

NOTICES OF MOTION FOR THE PRODUCTION OF 
PAPERS 

Ms Millard: Mr. Speaker , a Notice of Motion, moved by 
myself, seconded by th e Honourable Member from 
Whitehorse South Centre that the contract for Health Services 
to native people negotiated between the Yukon Native 
Brotherhood and the Yukon Territorial Government be tabled 
in this House. 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further Notices of Motion for 
the Production of Papers? 

Are there any Notices of Motion or Resolution? The Honour
able Member from Whitehorse Riverdale? 

NOTICES OF MOTION 
Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker, a Notice of Motion moved by 

my~~lf , seconded by the Member from Pelly, that· whereas a 
Pet1t10n was presented to this Assembly on March 7th , 1977 
and ~here~s on many occasions in the past, and on many 
o.ccas10ns smce the presentation of the petition, representa
tion and requests have been made to the Government of Yukon 
to enact forceful legislation establishing animal control laws 
or associated control measures. 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Government of Yukon now do 
~omething ~~~u~ th!s matt~r. and not. continue to be neglect in 
1ts respons1b1ht1es m prov1dmg realistic measures to control 
the .keep in~ of d~mestic animals, mainly cattle and horses, by 
takmg action w1th r espect to signing and traffic regulation 
along Yukon highways and thoroughfares where cattle and 
horses have been known to frequent and by providing or aiding 
owners ~f such livestock in an opportunity to lease or purchase 
appropnate land tracts or by encouraging the establishment 
of a system of community pastures in appropriate areas of 
Yukon. 

Mr. Speaker : Perhaps the Chair will have to review that 
as to its legality, in respect of the expenditure of public funds. 
However, we will look it over. 

Are there any further Notices of Motion or Resolution? The 
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Honourable Member from Kluane. 
M.rs. Wats~n: Yes , ~r. Speaker , I would like to give a 

Not1ce of Mot10n , regardmg grants in lieu of taxes to commun
ity organizations in L.I.D. 's and unorganized areas. 

Mr. Speaker : Are there any Statements by Ministers? 
This then brings us to the Question Period. 
The Honourable Minister of Education. 

QUESTION PERIOD 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling the ans

wers to the following. written questions: Number 3, relating to 
special ne~d~ of .Ind1an stu~ent~ , and Number 22, relating to 
the $200 million !me of credit to fmance pipeline impact costs. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Highways and 
Public Works. 
~on .. Mr. McKi~non: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling a 

legislative r eturn m answer to written question Number 16, 
concernmg employment on the pipeline construction project. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Minister of Human Re
sources. 
~on. Mrs. \Yhyard: Mr. Speaker, I have for tabling a legis

lative ~eturn m answer to wntten question 23, concerning the 
Establlshed Program Financing Act. 

Mr. Speaker: Have you any questions? 
The Honourable Member from Kluane. 

Question re: Description of Blocks of Land 
Mrs. Watson: Yes , Mr. Speaker , I have a written·question 

for the Minister of Local Government. Would the Minister 
provide descriptions of blocks of land which are required for 
the development of established communities that the Ter
ritorial Government has formally applied to the Federal Gov
ernment to have transferred from the administration and con
trols of the Federal Government, to the administration and 
control of the Territorial Government? 

Mr. Speaker: Are there any further questions? 
We will then proceed to Orders of the Day, under Motions. 

ORDERS OF THE DAY 

MOT~ONS 

Madam Clerk: Item Number 1, standing in the name of the 
Honourable Member Mrs. Watson. 

Mr. Speaker: Is the Honourable Member prepared to dis
cuss Item Number 1? 

Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Speaker. 
Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 

Member from Kluane, seconded by the Honourable Member 
fr?m Whitehorse Riverdale, that the White Papers on Arctic 
Wmter Games and on Heating Fuel Equalization be referred 
to Committee of the Whole. 
Motion agreed to 

Mr. Speaker: We will now proceed to Private Member's 
Public Bills. 

PRIVATE MEMBER'S PUBLIC BILLS 
Madam Clerk: Second Reading , Bill 101 , An Ordinance 

Respecting the Legislative Assembly, standing in the name of 
the Honourable Member, Mr. Hibberd. 

Mr. Speaker: The Honourable Member from Whitehorse 
South Centre? 
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Mr. Hibberd: Next sitting, Mr. Speaker. 
Mr. Speaker: The Hoaourable Member from Pelly River? 
Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I would move that Mr. 

Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House resolve into 
Committee of the Whole. 

Ms Millard: I second that. 
Mr. Speaker : It has been moved by the Honourable 

Member from Pelly River, seconded by the Honourable 
Member from Ogilvie that Mr. Speaker do now leave the Chair 
and that the House resolve into Committee of the Whole. 
Motion agreed to 
Speaker leaves the Chair 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

Mr. Chairman: I call this Committee to order , and we will 
be dealing with the Elections Ordinance after recess. Mr. 
McCall? 

Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have for tabling in the 
Committee, the amendments as I promised last week for the 
Committee's perusal , in dealing with the Workmen's Com
pensation Ordinance. 

Mr: Chairman: Thank you, Mr. McCall, we will be dealing 
also with the Electoral District Boundaries Ordinance. I will 
declare a r ecess. 
Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I call Committee to order . 
We will begin, first, with consideration of Bill Number 12, 

Electoral District Boundaries Ordinance. 
Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, is the ... 
Mr. Chairman: He is on his way. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: ... draftman here. 
Mr. Chairman: It is not my intention to read out all the 

details of each constitutency, I will merely call out the names. 
Clause 1, " The following are the electoral districts in the 

Yukon Territory". 
Perhaps, at this time, we could have general debate if there 

is any? 
Mr. Lang . 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in respect to the Bill before 

us, I know that we have all considered the report, submitted by 
the Electoral District Boundary Commission, and, subse
quently, we have the necessary legislation before us. 

I would just like to make a couple of points. In my estimata
tion it is , with the increase of the membership in the Legisla
ture, after the next election, it is going to be a turning point, in 
respect to the Yukon ... 

Mr. Chairman: Order, please. Order, please, Mr. Lang. I 
think we have sound difficulties. We will hang on for a minute. 

I arn sorry, carry on , Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in respect to the expansion 

in the size of the Legislature, I think that we have reached a 
turning point for Yukon. 

I think that it is fair to say that the next Legislature that sits 
here is going to be along the lines of party lines. It is my 
understanding that all three parties are committed to the 
concept of party lines, in respect to the size of the Legislature 
once it achieves the size of 15 or more. 

With the present legislation before us, you can see that we 
.are expanding to sixteen. I think it is important, Mr. Chair-
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man, to note that with the political sophistication that will be 
r eached after the next election, it is quite obvious that the 
party that comes in here with the majority is going to form the 
government, and there will be an acknowledged leader. 

F rom that point on, Mr. Chairman, what I would envisage 
happening is a decline or a withdrawal of the Commissioner's 
role in r espect to territorial matters and territorial legislation 
in Yukon as we see it today. 

I think at the same time, Mr. Chairman, that it is very 
important that the people have an elected, acknowledged 
leader, speaking on behalf of the Yukon when it comes to 
dealing with the other provinces as well as the Federal Gov
ernment, because that leader and that party that is going to 
form the government side in this House, will have a mandate 
from the people when they have gone to the electorate, and 
that mandate, they will have to attempt to fulfill, no matter 
how tough the hurdles are, no matter what the position of the 
Federal Government is , but it is going to be up to that leader 
and that party that forms the executive wing of the govern
ment to make the necessary policies as it relates to the territ
ory in totality. 

I think it is fair to say , also, Mr. Chairman , if the system 
were to go as it continues now without the concept of party 
politics, all we would have is sixteen individuals and at the 
same time, I think probably that much more paper which I 
refer to as the " Votes & Proceedings" . 

I think it is very important, Mr. Chairman, that with the 
induction of the party system, it is going to be very cruical that 
the parties have substantial platforms to run on across the 
territory in an attempt to get that majority from the people of 
the Yukon. With the advent of that, then I think that we have 
the legislative and executive arm of government in order, and 
then I think from there, we can proceed a lot more quickly 
than what we have in the past three years. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Taylor? 
Hon. Mr. Tayler: Yes, Mr. Chairman, just speaking 

briefly on this Bill: as you know, prior to its introduction by 
government, a resolution accepting the recommendations of 
the Electoral Boundaries Commission was debated in the 
House and at that time I raised some fairly strong protests and 
proposed an amendment to the boundary between the Watson 
Lake and the Campbell Districts. I feel very strongly on this 
question, and I have had some difficulty in determining my 
position in voting for this Bill, inasmuch as that repugnant 
section remains. 

However, I think, along the lines that have been stated by 
the Honourable Minister of Education, it seems to me that 
there has got to be some getting together in this House. There 
has to be some support of Government, in this House, at least 
by sufficient numbers in this House, to affect some solidarity 
and to give some direction and leadership to the Government 
and to the people of the Territory. 

So, rather than voting against the Bill for the principle 
which I hold dear, I will be voting for the Bill, but severely 
protesting that establishment of that boundary, that exists 
between Campbell and Watson Lake. 

These are my brief remarks on this, Mr. Chairman. Nor
mally, I would not vote in favour of the Bill because of the one 
section, but I think the balance of the Bill is good and the 
decision having been made by this House, I will abide by it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger. 
Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I agree wholeheartedly 

with what the Minister of Education said, and I will be voting 
for the Bill, but I think he left one major thing out. 

I think it is very important to this House, in the present' 
set-up of this House, at the present time, we are critisizing· 
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more the drafting of bills, as they come before us, than as we 
should be doing, critisizing the principle of bills. I am hoping 
that this will be changed with bringing party politics into this 
House. 

At the present time, I consider this a waste of time, a waste 
of taxpayers' money, what we are doing right now. We are 
critisizing bad drafted legislation , which , on a political set-up, 
should never come into this House. 

A political party system, I hope, would eliminate all of those 
things and we could go on with the matters concerning the 
people in reality, which the people are really concerned about. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Yes , Mr. Chairman, I certainly will be sup

porting the Bill. I think it is quite a highlight in our future, the 
fact that we are going to have an Assembly of 16 members. 

I would certainly commend the Honourable Member from 
Watson Lake, even though the disappointment he has suffered 
because of the boundaries, he is accepting the general princi
ple of the 16 members in the fact that he will be supporting the 
Bill. 

I agree with the comments that have been made, regarding 
the party structure, which must prevail in this House in the 
future, the fact that you must have a majority in the Govern
ment side, and so that the policies of the Government reflect 
the majority of the members in the House. 

It would be the greatest tragedy that the Yukon could ever 
suffer, I think, if we had 16 independents elected into the next 
Legislature. 

I think we all realize the fact that we ran as independents, 
most of us, we realize the position that our Assembly and our 
executive is in, and if we continue to promote this indepen
dence, no common philosophy with different spectors, we are 
only defeating our own purpose and we can blame the Federal 
Government all we like, but the blame really rests with us 
here in the Territory, and I think that every member of this 
House is going to have to try to sell the concept of the party 
politics within the next six to eight months. It gives me great 
pleasure, Mr. Chairman, to support this Bill which will give us 
sixteen members in the House. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 
Mr. Lengerke: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I am not going 

to add to much more to what Honourable Members have al
ready said, because certainly we agree with them. 

I think we are certainly all aware of the difficulties that we 
encounter in this House as independent members, it is a situa
tion that as we get into more difficult legislation, as the prob
lems of Yukon become more complex, we well realize that 
there has to be some leadership, there has to be certainly a 
consensus of opinion and I will certainly be in support of this 
Bill. 

When I spoke on it before, I commented on the excellent 
work the Commission did, and I would like to just re
emphasize that, and I think they presented an excellent re
port , which is a result of this Ordinance. I think if we have done 
nothing else as this Assembly, that the providing of sixteen 
members will be something very good for the future of the 
Yukon. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 
Mr. Fleming : Yes, Mr. Chairman, I will be supporting the 

Bill. I also had a problem with the one area the same as the 
member from Watson Lake, however, you lose some and you 
win some, and I commend the Boundaries Commission on the 
job they did do. I think that the enlargement of members in the 
House will definitely give us a better spectrum and better 
government, no matter how they win. 

I was never one for politics, but it looks as if that is the only 
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way that we are going to be able to go to get that control and 
have a majority doing the job that we were actually put in here 
to do. I think you all know the concept of this House today, and 
no disrespect to the Members that are on the Executive Com
mittee, because they are doing the very best they can, and as 
far as I am concerned , have been , but the concept is just not 
there. Until such time as I see a majority sitting across the 
House, or I am in that majority that has been put there by the 
people of this Territory , doing the job that they were put here 
to do , I won't be happy, even with one more elected member 
over there. I will not be happy with that, really. 

I want to see this House run by a majority of the people, that 
has been put there by a majority of the people. 

Thank you , Mr . Chairman . 
Mr. Chairman: Mr . McKinnon. 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I thank all Honoura

ble Members for their contributions to the debate , the general 
debate on the Bill Number 12, and the far-reaching aspects it 
will have for the people of the Yukon and, of course, for the 
advancement of democratic institutions in this Yukon and in 
the Yukon Legislative Assembly. 

I found the remarks of the Honourable Member from 
~llotalinqua to be very interesting at this point in time. I can 
recall i>ack to the days of the Executive Committee concept, 
which was introduced as an off-shoot of the Budget Program
ming Committee by the former Commissioner, Mr. Smith. 

I think we all realize, the first members on that Executive 
Committee, the imperfect structure of it, but the principle was 
to be, for the first time, the elected members were to get their 
feet wet in the administrative processes of Government, so 
that the legislative and the executive arms were linked , as the 
first step in the evolution of a Cabinet-type system of Govern
ment. 

I think all Members have recognized from that very first 
day, the imperfections of the system. I think you see the frust
rations and some of the problems that come about because of 
the lack of decent discipline and cohesiveness and of a major
ity group in the House. 

Be that as it may, I would suggest to Honourable Members 
at this time, that, even with the imperfections of that embryo 
cabinet system of Government in the Executive Committee 
system of Government, there were times in former years, 
when other members had the ability of throwing the baby out 
with the bath water, or shoo,tfflg-tlle messenger. At that time, 
the principle of the concept of Executive Committee was so 
important in its normal evolution, which is coming about now, 
that the concept, of course, was not destroyed and remained. 

I think that that is a very important point, at this time, in the 
development of Yukon's history, because I think, I just think, 
that with the things that have happened in the Yukon, and the 
development that has happened in the Yukon, and the feeling 
of the people of the Yukon, that they should have more say in 
their affairs, that, if the Federal Government had to do it all 
over again, perhaps they wouldn't like the concept of the Ex
ecutive Committee system of Government and an embryo 
cabinet structure being formalized. 

I think, probably, they would like nothing better to see that 
experiment in responsible government, perhaps, go by the 
board at this point in time. 

So there are problems, there are growing pains, and I think 
that, with the remarks of the Honourable Members, that the 
normal growth of that cabinet system in Executive system of 
Governmeent, can take place following the next election, pro
viding, as I say, the baby has not been thrown out in the bath 
water, for that point in time. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall? 
Mr. McCall: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I would like to just 

go on record to say that I will not be supporting Bill Number 12 
for obvious reasons. The opportunity is before us now , Mr. 
Chairman, where we could, what you might say have a last 
kick at the cat before we set into place something which was 
imposed upon the twelve members here today prior to us 
becoming elected in 1974. We are doing the same thing as we 
did to the elected members , and that is set something into 
place without taking into consideration the consequences. 

As I said a moment ago, Mr. Chairman, I do not support this 
particular piece of legislation for obvious reasons. One, I cer
tainly find myself with no riding or name, because the name 
has been changed from Pelly River to Faro. The reasons have 
not been explained to me. I also have had my particular riding 
r educed beyond reason, which has not been properly exp
lained to me. 

As I stated when the report was tabled by the Executive 
Members , that we had public meeting throughout the Territ
ory , which I like to see. I am a believer of this. I explained then 
that I was not in a position to attend those public meetings 
because I was doing committee work. 

I had proposed amendments, Mr. Chairman. I see no point 
or any reason whatsoever to bring them forward at this time. I 
would just like to say that I will not be supporting this Bill. 

Mr. Chairman: Any further general debate? Ms Millard? 
Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, I have been waiting for some 

of the Honourable Members to mention what I feel is the most 
important principle of this Bill, and that is native representa
tion. In debate on the motion which formed the Electoral 
District Boundaries Commission, several members stood in 
support of the concept of greater native representation in this 
Assembly so I feel it my duty to mention that and to emphasize 
the fact that I feel it is the most important part of this Bill. 

I am really proud that after the next election Old Crow will 
be its own constituency. I am very pleased to see that the 
principle of representation by population was virtually ig
nored to establish Old Crow as its own constituency, because I 
feel we should recognize the input that the native people have 
had in the Yukon Territory, and this is one of the ways, and 
particularly in Old Crow, because Old Crow has shown a tre
mendous positive response to the idea of a one government 
system, and we must recognize that response and welcome 
native representation in this Assembly. 

That is about all I want to say. I am really happy to see that 
party politics are a possibility, but, to me, the principle of 
native representation in here is far more important. 
On Clause 1 

Mr. Cosman: There is a typographical error in the penul
timate line, "Whitehorse co-ordinated survey area". 

Whitehorse, halfway down, intersection. 
Any amendments to Clause 1? 

Clause 1 agreed to 
On Clause 2 

Clause 2 agreed to 
0:. Clause 3 
Clause 3 agreed to 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, is the proclaiming of this 

Ordinance rather important, the timing of it, in order to have 
it done to tie in with when this existing Legislative Assembly is 
dissolved before the next election? Is it a very crucial type of 
timing? 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr . Lang: Mr. Cha irman, there is an importance, in 

respect to the timing of this particular Bill, and this is why you 
find it before you during this Session. 

I do not have a breakdown in front of me, in respect to it , but 
the proclaimation and the timing, in respect to the writs for 
the election and all this type of thing, do go in a sequence so it is 
very important. 

I would imagine proclaimation would come as soon as pos
sible and, subsequently, the wheels could come into mot ion. 

Mr. Chairman: The Commissioner of the Yukon Territ
ory, by and with the advice and consent of the Council of the 
said Territory, enacts as follows: Electoral District Bound· 
aries Ordinance. 

Shall the title carry? 
Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. Chairman: Shall I have a motion? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I would move that Bill 

Number 12 be reported out of Committee, without amend
ment. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I second it. 
Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. Lang, seconded 

by Mrs. Whyard, that Bill Number 12 be moved out of Commit
tee without amendment. 
Motion agreed to 

Mr. Chairman : We will continue with Bill Number 10 , 
Elections Ordinance., \'1 11. 

Mr. McCall. 
Mr. McCall: I would like my vote to be recorded that I 

disagree. 
Mr. Chairman: There is no d ivision in Committee, Mr. 

McCall. 

Mr. Cosman, this I gather was not your Bill. Thank you very 
much. 
On Clause 1 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any general debate? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, before we go into general 

debate, would it be all right to invite the witnesses in ? 
Mr. Chairman: I thought that perhaps we could continue 

with general debate, and if the wi tnesses were necessary, we 
could certainly have them in. We will need them in the clause 
by clause. 

Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, for the purposes of general 

debate on this particular Bill , I would like to make a couple of 
comments, and I would like to firs t of all state the work that 
the Clerk of the Assembly has done in respect to this Bill. I 
think she has worked very hard and has done an excellent job 
in respect to co-ordinating and getting the necessary people 
involved and working on the Bill herself, and I think she should 
be commended for it. 
Applause 

Hon. Mr. Lang: At the same time, Mr. Chairman, you 
will recall that I did speak to the principle of the Bill when it 
was given second reading. There are a couple more comments 
that I think should be made, and number one is that in the Bill, 
it is incorporated into the Bill to recognize political parties, 
which is a first for the Yukon. 

At the same time, Mr. Chairman, we have left the legislation 
open, in respect to the actual running of the elections. The 
Chief Electoral Officer cannot or is not prepared to run the 
election. We have left it open so that we can contract maybe . 
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some other individual to run the next Territorial election. As 
you know, we will probably be coming across some problems, 
possibly, in respect to the next election, as we may be looking 
at a Federal election at the same time there is a Territorial 
election, which could be a very difficult problem , if the Chief 
Electoral Officer of Canada were to run our election as well as 
the Federal election with it being the two pieces of legislation : 
the Canada Elections Act as opposed to the Elections 
Ordinance which is before you today , and if it is passed. 

At the same time, Mr. Chairman, I don't think that I can 
stress the importance of this particular piece of legislation 
and how it relates to the Federal Act. As you know, in the 
Yukon Act, we do have the ability to run our own elections, but 
also at the same time there is another piece of Federal legisla
tion that does provide for elections in Yukon, which is the 
Canada Elections Act, and it is very, very necessary, and I 
have got to stress that it is very necessary that that piece, that 
the Section 113, pertaining to the Yukon, be r epealed. If it 
doesn't, it is my understanding that there is a very grey area 
whether or not our piece of legislation would be the ordinance 
that would have the power vested in it, or the authority vested 
in it to administer elections. 

The present piece of legislation , the Canada Elections Act, I 
understand, is in Committee, in Ottawa, at the present time in 
the committee stages. There are amendments being made. It 
is my understanding that the necessary amendment that we 
requested and that furthermore we have had commitments by 
the Federal Government that they would repeal that particu
lar section has not been done up to now. 

As I said in the opening, when I was speaking to the principle 
of the Bill, we had sent another dex to the present Minister 
explaining the urgency of that particular amendment, and up 
to now, as far as I know, we have not had a reply but I think it is 
very important, Mr. Chairman, that everybody be fully aware 
that this has to be done or otherwise it would be, in my estima
tion , it would be wasting our time considering this Bill. 

At the same time I do not think that we can accept the reply 
that they are prep~red to amend the legislatio~ at .another 
time, because, as we all know , as I stated earlier, 1t would 
appear that we would be looking at a Spring or.Fall. Fede.ral 
Election, and the possibilities of that piece of legtslatJO':l bemg 
re-introduced into Parliament would be very, very shm. 

So from the Government's viewpoint, we are doing all the 
nece~sary work and contacting the necessary people in Ot
tawa to express to them the urgency of the situation in respect 
to this piece of legislaiton. 

I think the legislation , in totality, we have done everything 
we can to try to have it conform to the unique problems that we 
have in Yukon and I think that , with the advent of the 
Elections Ordi~nce being administered in Yukon, it is 
another step for responsibility as far as the Legislature is 
concerned, as well as the executive arm of Government. 

Mr. Chairman: Is there any further general debate. 
Are there any amendments to Clause 1? 

Clause 1 agreed to 
On Clause 2 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, there is a typing error in 

Section 2. (1)(iii ). It should be "donations". 
At the same time, Mr. Chairman, it would be my recom

mendation that the witnesses be invited. 
Mr. Chairman: They are coming, they are on their way. 
Any debate on Clause 2? 

Clause 2 agreed to 

. On Clause 3 
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Mr. Chairman: Shall Clause 3 carry? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I think that this is a section 

that we will have to look at with out legal draftsman, in respect 
to the present piece of legislation that just cleared Committee. 

Mr. Chairman: At this time, I would like to welcome our 
two witnesses , Mr. Michael Clegg, and Mr. Bill MacDonald 
who are very well known to most Members here. They have 
done a great deal of work on our behalf in preparing this and 
other ordinances. We are indeed pleased to have you here to 
help us in going through of this Bill. 

On Clause 4 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I have a concern about 

this giving the power to the Commissioner. Could we receive 
an explanation to separate the administrative side from the 
political piece of the electorate. My concern is Mr. Chairman, 
we all know the Commmissioner's appointment is a political 
appointment, and this is where I have real great concern 
about it, that this could be used by the political party in power 
in Ottawa to influence the appointments of Board members. 
There is nothing in here that gives me the assurance that this 
will not happen. I would like to hear the members of the 
committee's view on it, because I have great concern over this 
section. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, first of a ll , this is a new 

concept in respect to elections being run in the Yukon. As you 
know, in Section 4, it does provide for continuity or continuity 
of terms of office so that all the terms of office don't expire at 
the same time so that there is some experience in respect to 
the Board. 

At the same time, Mr. Chairman, in this particular section, 
what would take place is that there would be an appointment 
of a Elections Board for the next election, but to all intents and 
purposes, the elections board would be in the process of learn
ing the elections procedures, and the authority for running the 
election would lie vested with the officer that had been emp
loyt!d, or the administrator who had been employed to run the 
election. He would be working with the elections board. It 
would be after that election, in other words, two elections from 
now, where the elections board would take the full responsibil
ity as outlined in this piece of legislation. 

At the same time, appointments to this board would be made 
through the Executive Committee, and I am sure that as a 
member of the Executive Committee and my two colleagues 
would be more than happy to hear nominations of names that 
co·tld possibly serve on this particular board, because it is 
going to be very, very important in respect to even this forth
coming election, and more so for elections coming after that 
time. 

At the same time, I think it is fair to say, Mr. Chairman, that 
in respect to the elections board, I think it is noteworthy to see 
that we have not provided for the poltical parties or the opposi
tion in government appointing the various officers in respect 
to the polling divisions and this kind of thing. We have left that 
with the board and the administrator as one of their respon
sibilities. 

I think it is very important that when running elections that 
this type of thing stay non political. It is an administrative task 
that should be done, it should be done from strictly an adminis
trative task rather than bringing in the political arm of gov
ernment in respect to the running of elections. So I think in 
respect, I think the Honourable Member has raise~ a point, 
but at the same time, I think in respect to the structurmg of the 
Board and this kind of thing, I am sure that the Executive 
Committee is prepared to listen to nominations for the par
ticular board, and would be given all due consideration . 
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Possibly the witnesses have a few comments to make as 
well, Mr. Chair m:m. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. MacDonald. 
It is fine, if you wish to sit down, it is fine to remain seated. 
Mr. MacDonald: Yes, thank you. 
The basic idea, as the Minister has said, Mr. Lang has said, 

the basic idea of a board is to provide for , firstly, for the 
extraordinary degree of neutrality that a Chief Electoral Of
ficer requires. 

Now, as you know, in many jurisdictions, notably Ottawa, 
the one which, perhaps, you are most familiar , the Chief Elec
toral Officer is the single person with quite extraordinary 
powers . I suspect that Ottawa is used to that kind of bureacra
tic and , in some cases, autocratic power vested in one man, 
but it is very difficult in a place like, say, Yukon Territory, to 
find a person in whom that much trust can be imposed at one 
time. It is far simpler to recommend a board and deal with a 
board composed of not less than three people , where the biases 
or prejudices of a single person, are not imposed on the elec
tion procedure. 

The Chief Electoral Officer in other jurisdictions , also, is 
otherwise, placed in, sometimes, very invidious positions . The 
cr itics, during an election procedure, are numerous , people 
who feel they should be intitled to vote and are otherwise 
disqualified, people who feel that someone has shown pre
judice where they should not have shown , and so forth and so 
on. 

It is my feeling, and was so recommended, originally, to 
your sub-comm ittee, that the board would relieve one person 
of this responsibility, because of its weight in numbers, the 
position it occupies, being three, instead of one person. 

To get back to the Honourable Member's question here con
cerning the appointment by the Commissioner, I think it is for 
you to decide among yourselves as to how the appointment is 
made. I presume that most appointments for these matters 
are made over the signature of the Commissioner. Whether it 
would be made with the Commissioner in Council or not, I 
don't know. That I leave entirely open to you. 

We made the simple r ecommendation that the Commis
sioner appoint. Any decision beyond that would have to be 
yours and I have no further recommendation on it. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr . Lengerke? 
Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I could go back 

to 3. (1) for just a minute. This concerns me, and probably I 
should know the answer and my concern should not be there. I 
want to ask the Legal Advisor, Mr. Clegg, what would be the 
effect of that particular section if the Legislative Assembly 
Ordinance was not assented to? Is there any affect there at 
all? 

Mr. Clegg: The effect on Section 3.(1 )? If the Legislative 
Assembly Or dinance is not passed at this session, there will 
have to be considerable adjustments made to this Ordinance, 
if it is to pass and be effective, not only will the electoral 
districts have to be defined in this, not only will they have to be 
inserted into this Ordinance, but they will also, the provision 
for members' salaries and allowance will have to be inserted 
in· this Ordinance, so in fact , it is true to say that if the 
Legislative Assembly Ordinance is not passed, we will have to 
devise substantive amendments to this Ordinance to bring in 
those matters . 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would just like to 

comment on the remarks that the Honourable Member from 
Klondike made when he expressed his concern regarding the 
appointment of the Board by the Commissioner, and it ap-
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pears as though the Ordinance completely delgates this au
thority to the Commissioner. Actually, in fact , what it is doing 
is delegating the authority to the Commissioner and the Ex
ecutive Committee. However, because the Executive Com
mittee operates under a ministerial directive, not under a law , 
but a ministerial directive to the Commissioner, and which 
advises the Commissioner he must consult with the elected 
members of the Executive Committee on all matters regard
ing the administration of government within the Yukon Ter
ritory. He must consult with them. 

However, there is one deficiency in that ministerial direc
tive, and this is the thing that the Constitutional Committee 
has been working on, and it is something that is most impor
tant to us , that even if he consults, the ministerial directive 
does not say he has to take their advice. We can change all the 
legislation we like, but the best way is to get that ministerial 
directive changed so that he must consult and he must accept 
their advice. 

I would sooner see that type of thing, see the Commissioner 
and the Executive Committee, because after all , if we do have 
a party system, surely your Executive Committee would be 
consulting with the r est of the members of their party in that 
House for leave. We wouldn't be wrong if we wrote Commis
sioner in Council, because really it should be Commissioner 
with the body in power, that is what it should be. I would 
support Commissioner in Council , but I think in this instance I 
would just as soon leave it and work on getting that ministerial 
directive changed. 

Mr. Chairman: I am wondering, with regard to this Clause 
3, it refer s to the Legislative Assembly Ordinance, but we 
have a separate Ordinance which is before Committee, the 
Electoral District Boundaries Ordinance. Shouldn't Clause 3 
refer to that , rather than Legislative Assembly Ordinance? 

Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang : Mr. Chairman, I do not know if the witnes

ses are fully aware of the amendments to the Electoral Dis
trict Boundaries Ordinance. What I would suggest right now , 
is that that particular section be just left for now, and then I 
will bring in the necessary amendment, if it is necessary. 

Mr. Chairman: It has been stood over. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes. 
Mr. Chairman: I am just pointing out that , if this is neces

sary, it should be taken up . 
Ms Millard. 
Ms Millard: Mr. Chairman, just on the elections board. I 

might have missed it , but I did not hear the witnesses mention 
anything about the provinces , whether or not they have an 
elections board or a chief electoral officer. Is it the same as 
this? 

Mr. MacDonald: No, the common procedure is for the 
province to have a Chief Electoral Officer. In some situations, 
it has been in more, notably, in the past, where a neutral 
person, such as a Clerk of Assembly, was also appointed Chief 
Electoral Officer, on the basis of the fact that their neutrality 
was well known and therefore, their prejudices weren't, if 
any, weren't very apparent. 

More recently, provinces are going to appointing their own 
Chief Electoral Officer, who is appointed by the Government, 
an Order-in-Council being, probably, by the Government in 
power, now has to prove his worth, I suppose, as he goes along. 

B.C. has had that situation for many years. They have a 
complicated, as you know, a complicated registration system, 
that their registration does not occur just at election time as it 
does in most other jurisdictions. So, their Chief Electoral Of
ficer is busy with continuing registration of voters, which is 
one of the ways they justify his employment. 
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The other problem with appointing a Chief Electoral Of

ficer , is , in ordinary circumstances, with an election held 
every four years, what do you do with the rascal for three 
years? You know, he works for one, and the rest of the time he 
is getting into trouble. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, Mr. Chairman, the witness has just 
mentioned that one area, in respect to the election officer. and 
my understanding is that there is , some of the provinces do 
have a Chief Electoral Officer full-time , but, here in the 
Yukon , it was our feeling that we should be looking at an 
election board for continuity, which is done with Section 4 .( 4 l, 
outlining the terms of office so that there is always some 
experienced individual on that particular board. 

At the same time, it allows us to contract an individual to 
come in and run the election, as an administrator. In other 
words, perhaps, second somebody from the neighbouring 
provincial jurisdictions coming up to do the necessary ad
ministrative work during the election, prior to the election and 
during , rather than having an individual on staff for four 
years, which really, in my estimation, is not necessary in 
respect to the evolution that we are presently in. 

Clause 4 agreed to 

Mr. Chairman: Administrator of Elections. 
On Clause 5 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, I am not finished with 4 of the 

Elections Ordinance, because I think that this is too important 
to let go like we are doing right now. I can see a lot of argu
ments and a lot of fights coming up in the next election and the 
elections thereafter, because we are handling it too lightly. 

I would like to maybe get the explanation from the witness if 
this wouldn't be possible to get the Clerk of the Assembly to be 
the Chief Electoral Officer, like in the provinces like he exp
lained to us. Why not go this route? 

I say again, the Commissioner is a very political appoint
ment. Every member in this Committee should know what 
happened during the appointment of the Commissioner and 
the outrage it created in the Yukon. We are leaving the power 
to the Commissioner, not the Executive Committee people. 
Because as the Honmourable Member from Kluane pointed 
out correctly, the Commissioner does not need to take the 
advice of the Executive Committee people. All he needs to do 
is to take the advice from his Minister, who is a political 
person, a political animal sitting in Ottawa. I am not going to 
let this go by that one political party in power in Ottawa, 3,000 
miles away from here, can run this election. This is exactly 
what we are doing here by giving the Commissioner the power 
of appointing the board. 

So, Mr. Chairman, I would like to go a little deeper and 
maybe get more information on the Clerk of the Assembly, 
like they did in the other provinces sometimes. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I think that we all know 

that we are in a state of change in respect to the Executive arm 
of government. Number one, when I was speaking to the prin
ciple of the Electoral Boundaries Commission Ordinance, I 
stated that there would be an acknowledged leader, or in other 
words, a party that would come in and be in power, and would 
be the government. The Honourable Member from Kluane 
touched on that particular issue. So in other words, I would 
envisage the Commissioner's authority declining. In other 
words, the leader and the government would be taking on the 
responsibility and standing up and protecting , defending gov
ernment policy just like any other area of Canada. At the same 
time, Mr. Chairman, you have to look at the responsibilities of 
the present Clerk of the Assembly. 
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She has two responsibilities at the present time. That par
ticular area of responsibility has not been split. She is respon
sible to the executive wing of government, also to the legisla
tive wing of government. So the neutrality that the witness 
spoke of is not there as of yet. I am sure that it will change, but 
it is going to take time to change. At the same time, in respect 
to the running of an election, I think it is fair to say that we 
should have somebody contracted from another neighbouring 
jurisdiction that does have the necessary experience. 

I question whether or not that particular responsibility 
should be delegated to the Clerk of the Assembly even if the 
position was delegated . It is not a full-time position, it is a 
position that would be contracted for a certain timeframe. 
You have the board in respect to giving it the necessary direc
tion and making decisions when problems do occur in the 
uniques situation in Yukon, which undoubtedly it would hap
pen. 

At the same time, in respect to the board, I would suggest 
that for the next election, that the appointment will be made 
by the Executive Committee. As I said, we are prepared to 
listen to names in respect to that particular board, because 
you have no idea in this day and age, it is fine to talk about a 
committee, it is fine to talk about a board. At the same time, it 
is very, very difficult to find people who, number one, have the 
capability and, number two, have the time to serve on boards. 
So, we will be looking for names , in respect to that particular 
board. 

At the same time, I am sure that , after the next election, and 
during the time frame of that particular legislature sitting, 
that this Bill will probably come up for amendment. At that 
time, a decision can be made, in respect to what changes have 
to be made. 

But, I am sure, in respect to the situation that exists today 
and, as my colleague Mr. McKinnon stated, it is imperfect, we 
all realize it is imperfect, but it is going to change. I am sure it 
is going to change after the next election. I think that we have 
to live with the situation as it exists today, and, after the next 
election, it will be scrutinized once again, and subsequently, 
obvious change would have to be made. 

So, I cannot see any problem in respect to the way the 
particular section is written. Furthermore, Mr. Chairman. it 
was my understanding that the Section had been cleared. 
On Clause 5 

On Clause 6 

On Clause 7 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, there is a typing error in 

Section 6.(1) , " in accordance", in the first line. 
Mr. Chairman, this outlines the, in broad terms, the respon

sibility of the board and also at the same time, allows for the 
hiring of an administrator. 

As you note, this goes along with the Public Service Com
mission Ordinance, and , rightfully so it should. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. MacDonald. 
Mr. MacDonald: I would like to comment on that , if I 

might, Mr. Chairman, on the administrative, the aspect of an 
administrator. 

A board, for reasons I stated earlier, is an important office 
in election procedure, but a board cannot make the kind of 
decisions that are required to be made, during the course of an 
election, therefore, it has always seemed to me to be highly 
important that the board have some person in its employ, a 
senior officer in its employ, who can make those rather rapid 
decisions that must be made. 

As you know, procedures during election are always 



crowded and time is a problem to everyone, particularly to the 
administra tors, and a returning officer must have someone to 
whom he can turn who can say, yes, we will do this or, no, we 
won't do that , and take r esponsibility for so saying. 

That is one of the reasons why , in respect to the Honourable 
Member's comments up there, that the existence of a Chief 
Electoral Officer is often not unreasonable, because he can 
make those kinds of decisions. 

Having been a chief electoral officer for something like ten 
years, I can tell you that it is a situation in which sometimes a 
single person finds himself very alone. By single person, I 
mean a single decision maker finds himself very alone. How
ever, notwithstanding that , the introduction of an adminis
trator to the board in this Bill to me is a very important 
consideration and should not be taken lightly as all of you will 
find out if you run in a subsequent election and there is an 
administrator there. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinilon? 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, just a question of Mr. 

MacDonald. Is it the intention that the administrator of the 
next territorial election would then be the Chief Electoral 
Officer of Canada. Is that the type of arrangement that we are 
looking at at the present time? 

Mr. MacDonald: Basically, the administrator would have 
as much power as the board would like to give him, I believe. If 
the board is wise, it will determine early on what decisions it 
wants its administrator to make and what decisions it wants 
referred back to it. The board will have to learn and know that 
certain decisions must be made quickly and responsibly, and 
in those situations the administrator is acting for the board, 
acting for the Chief Electoral Officer, and if you wish, acting 
as a Chief Electoral Officer, Mr. McKinnon. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 
Hon. Mr . McKinnon : Mr. Chairman, in the synopsis that 

we have on the Elections Ordinance, it states on page one, 
"The Commissioner has received the agreement of the Chief 
Electoral Officer to administer the next forthcoming general 
elect ion of members in 1978 that the legislation met certain 
requirements that the Chief Electoral Officer deemed neces
sary." 

Now, the question that I am trying to get clarification from , 
if the legislation met certain requirements, if the Chief Elec
toral Officer were willing to serve in the forthcoming general 
election would he or his agents then be that administrator for 
that next territorial election, is that the type of process we are 
looking a t for the next general election? 

Mr. MacDonald: No, the assumption is that he would re-
place the board. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon : He would replace the board. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang : Mr. Chairman, Section 101 provides for 

that occurrence it if does take place. The question is, is the 
C:hief Electoral Officer prepared to assume that responsibility 
and to my knoweldge, we are not yet sure whether or not he is 
prepared to take on that responsibility. 

As I said in my opening remarks, we would like to see the 
board in place so they could learn from the experience of that 
first election run under this particular piece of legislation. So 
it does provide for it , but is not mandatory. If you note Section 
101, if you want to refer, it says " may conclude an agree
ment". There is not "shall" in there. So in other words, it 
leaves the door open to contracting someone else, other than 
the Chief Electoral Officer to run the forthcoming election if 
he is not pr epared to run under this present piece of legislation 
we have before you. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon. 
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Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman , that is the question I 
was trying to lead up to , if all of these things cannot come 
about, if the Chief Electoral Officer does not like the legisla
tion, if there is a federal election and we all the perfectionism 
of the elections procedure in the federal sphere, that if these 
things couldn't come about, where the Chief Electoral Officer 
were going to act as the overseer of the next Territorial elec
tion, does the legislation allow the possibility, with the ap
pointment of the board and the administrator of the board for 
the Yukon Territory, so that there will not be a hiatus between 
members being elected to th is Assembly because of things 
that happened somewhere else , will it be possible for the Gov
ernment of Yukon, if all these conditions cannot be met, for the 
Chief Electoral Officer to run their own elections in the next 
Territorial election? 

Mr. MacDonald: If you are asking me for a comment, I 
think it is possible, on the basis of the recommendat ions I 
made to you, otherwise I wouldn 't have made them. 

The alternatives provided by agreement between, as far as I 
know, the Commissioner and the Minister responsible for Ter
ritorial affairs , has existed for some time, in that one, you 
would become responsible , or Yukon would become person
ally responsible for running its own Assembly elections , and, 
two, that, having supplied the proper Ordinance, the Chief 
Electoral Officer for Canada, with all of his experience and 
the manpower that he has, would run the first election for the 
Yukon Terr itory. That would be the 1978 election. 

If he chooses not to do so , and if you come to the point where 
you have to decide whether or not you are going to accept what 
the Chief Electoral Officer of Canada wants to do or what you 
want to do, you have to decide then if you can run your own 
election. I think you can. 

Is that what you want to know, Mr. McKinnon? 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Yes, Mr. Chairman , thank you . 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr. Chairman, clarifiction Section 

5. (1 ), " The Board shall employ" . They employ the adminis
trator. 

In Section 6.(1 ), ··The Commissioner, in accordance with 
the Public Service Commission Ordinance, authorizes the 
employment of such officers and employees as are necessary 
for the carrying out of the duties and responsibilities assigned 
to or undertaken by the board or the administrator'' . 

Now, that does give me a little bit of concern. Is the adminis
trator going to be a member of the Public Service of the 
Yukon, or are some of the officers, the election officers going 
to be members of the Public Service of the Yukon? 

I would like clarification on this one. 
Mr. MacDonald: It is my understanding that , in our dis

cussions with the Subcommittee on Legislation, it is not envis
aged that the administrator would be a public servant. He 
would be contracted for as needed by the board, which con
tinues to exist, perhaps on a small fee basis of some kind. 

He will be contracted, or his services will be contracted for 
at the time of an election or just prior to it, to get ready for it 
and run the show for them. 

The employees that are referred to here , officers and emp
loyees, are those other than the returnin_g officer_, the dep~ty 
returning officer, and so on, whose appomtment IS dealt w1~h 
further on in the legislation. These are clerical, stenographic 
and other employees that would be required by a board or an 
administrator to get the paper work done and so forth and so 
on for an election. That is how I understand this section. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would like to consider that. 
I just don't see how any election officers, cle~ks, stenos! a~y-· 
body, should be tied to the Yukon Public ServJCe CommiSSIOn· 
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at all. They should be independent, completely, the board 
should have the authority to contract services , clerical ser
vices, stenographic services , contract the administrator, 
when they want to get some assistance from the Public Ser
vice Commission in writing of the job description and this type 
of thing, but there is no way that the Public Service Commis
sion, or any person who works within the government of this 
Territory should even type for the election officers, or the 
administrator, or the board. They have to be completely and 
absolutely independent of government. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, the reason the Public Ser· 

vice Commission Ordinance was put in this particular section 
was in order to determine the wage rate and this kind of thing. 
This was specifically why it was put in. 

At the same time in respect to working with the board, you 
could see the time that maybe some people within the gov
ernment could be seconded to the board and this kind of thing 
to do the necessary work. It is a short timeframe that is in
volved, and this possibility does exist , so we are trying to tie it 
in with the government staff that we have, to a certain extent , 
in order to cut down in respect to maybe some of the expenses 
involved in the election. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, r eally, if somebody is work

ing for the government and they are not busy enough so the 
board can use them, well then the government has no business 
hiring them. · 

Mr. Chairman, I can see using a gauge for contracting the 
administrator, his functions he would have as far as the sal
ary, Mr. Chairman, but you don 't have to write in Public 
Service Commission. What you actually have written in there , 
you read that. "The Commissioner may, in accordance with 
the Public Service Commission, authorize", he authorizes, not 
the board, "authorize the employment of such officers". My 
goodness, is that returning officers? "And employees as are 
necessary for the carrying on of the duties and responsibilities 
assigned to or undertaken by the board." There is no way you 
need that in there, or should you have it in there. The board 
does this , they are an independent board. Government 
shouldn't want them to have anything to do with them. The 
farther they can get away from government, the better for 
government and for the election. 

I just do not like that section at all. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, we are prepared to take 

another look at this Section. 
Mr. Chairman: It is always the easy way out, Mr. Lang . 

Committee will recess until 1:30. 
Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I call Committee to order. 
We will go en with Clause 8. Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, have you read 8, may we 

question Section 8 now? 
Mr. Chairman: I haven't read it, but I hadn't intended to 

read the whole thing. 
Mrs. Watson: Are you going to read it? 
Mr. Chairman: No, I am not, so if you wish to question it, 

please do. 
Mrs. Watson: All right, Section 8 refers to returning offic

ers and Section 8, the Commissioner appoints the returning 
officer. In Section 9, the assistant returning officers, the board 
appoints the assistant returning officer. Was this by design? 

Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, yes, in response to Mrs. 
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Watson. It is by design . The returning officer, his position is 
that important that I bel ieve that the appointment should be in 
the same way as an Order-in-Council appointment. Also, the 
appJintment may bf' for a continuing term, a returning officer 
is believed that it is best to have them continue in office from 
election to election because of their experience, whereas an 
assistant returning officer's appointment would not be for a 
continuing term; it would expire the following election. 

Mrs. Watson: Well , the one further question , Mr. Chair
man, that's what I was wondering, whether it was a continuing 
appointment, but Section 10. ( 4), the termination is by the 
Board. 

Mr. Macdonald: Mr. Chairman, that is a very valid point , 
and it is incorrect, it will require an amendment. 

Mrs. Watson: "Upon the board's recommendation", 
would that be what they suggest? A determination would be by 
the Commissioner, would it be upon the board's recommenda
tion? 

Mr. MacDonald : Well , it says, one termination. Since peo
ple who appoint can normally terminate that , in the case of a 
r eturning officer, then the termination would be by the Com
missioner. In the case of assistant returning officer, termina
tion could be by the board or on suspension. 

If we simply ended this clause, "shall forthwith be termi
nated", but not say who, as Mr. Clegg has said, I th ink would 
satisfy us , Mr. Chairman. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Cha irman, I would add, " by the Com
missioner", just to make sure the board doesn't undertake ... 

Mr. Chairman: Pardon, Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I would say "terminated by 

the Commissionier " , rather than just leave it " terminated", 
because, I think that that would clarify it so that the board 
were aware that they could not, in fact, terminate a returning 
officer's appointment. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in referring to Section 

10. ( 1), I think the Honourable Member has ra ised a good point , 
but, at the same time, that particular section refers to assis
tant returning officer, as well. So, it is going to have to be done 
in two sections, that the board can terminate an assistant 
returning officer and the Commissioner can- but that can be 
looked at. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: It is true that the two terminations should be 

done by different bodies, but, I think it would be just as good to 
leave it as te':'minated, because I don't think that it is approp
riate that one should put words in legislation to explain and to 
bring people's attention to things that are already imported by 
the legislation. 

If you wish, we can include the person that can terminate 
them, but it is certainly implied by law that the person that 
appoints is the person who terminates. 

If you want to have a termination specified, that point is 
really being, it is really a reconfirmation of something which 
would be implied by law, anyway. 

Certainly, we should make separate provisions for the ter
mination of the assistant returning officer and the returning 
officer. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: I do think, though, there is, with all respect, 

I know that if a power is given, then it is implied that they 
terminate, but I do feel that there is a little bit of, maybe some 
confusion caused in this, because, Section 9.(4), this goes on to 
the assistant returning officers, they may be suspended by the 
administrator and the board. 



So you are adding the administrator into the suspension 
process , but not into the termination process of the assistant 
returning officer, whether that was done by design or not. 

Mr. Clegg: That was done by design to provide suspension, 
as something that could be done very quickly. For example, if 
the administrator found somebody who was incapable of ful
filling his duties for some unfortunate reason, and he could be 
suspended immediately, without having to call a meeting of 
the Board to do it. I take your point and maybe it would be 
clearer if we did specify the terminating authority in each 
case. 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, in the pecking order of this, 
the administrator is above the returning officer and then we 
have the assistant returning officer. Is that how it operates? 

Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, Mrs. Watson is correct. 
Mrs. Watson: Well , Mr. Chairman, would not the adminis

trator possibly require the power to suspend a returning of
ficer? 

If there is a glaring thing and you have got-
Mr. MacDonald: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman, the board 

has the power to suspend a returning officer, the board having 
been consulted by the Commissioner in his appointment of 
returning officers, has he not? 

Mrs. Watson: Right. 
Mr. MacDonald: The Commissioner, of course, having 

appointed the returning officer is the only one who can dismiss 
him, and the board can suspend him, or do away with him 
temporarily, get him out of the way. The administrative of
ficer would undoubtedly be the one to bring this to the atten
tion of the board, you may have a point in the fact that the 
administrative officer may have to act more quickly, as Mr. 
Clegg points out. The Honourable Member may have a point in 
the possibility of a delay. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, wouldn't that be up bet

ween the board and the administrator to arrange just exactly 
what authority is going to be vested with the administrator. 
For the example that you have just cited , if he does find a 
returning officer is not capable or doing something wrong in 
respect to the function that he is supposed to be carrying out, 
the administrator could possibly forthwith suspend that indi
vidual, bring that suspension back to the board and say we 
need a reappointment right now, or even with the board's 
consent saying, " Look, we are tired of giving boards- I am 
going to reappoint somebody for this interim time. Is that not 
correct, Mr. MacDonald? 

Mr. MacDonald: Well, basically as I had visualized the 
relationship between the board and the administrator Mr. 
Chairman, if I may, it's all very well to try and be precise 
about such matters in a statute that sets out job by job proces
ses, and the best evidence I have of this is the Canada Elec· 
tions Act which practically tells the returning officer where to 
go to the bathroom, but I think it should be made plain that 
when you create a system with a board working with an ad
ministrator, to try and tell them in statute how they should 
precisely function, I think is taking away from their respon
sibilities and taking away from their effectiveness. 

As the Minister has indicated, I am sure that when some
thing happened where an administrative officer, the senior 
officer of the Board, was required to get rid of a man, he would 
do so without any question, and then he would go to the board 
and say, now, I want your sanction, and if the board didn't give 
it to him, if his reasons weren't responsible and proper and he 
had done it and the board didn't give it to him, he should be 
leaving on the next plane, or the board should see that he does, 
one or the other. 
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They just have to work together on it , Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, there is one section that is 

bothering me, Section 8.(1), it states, " for every electoral 
district , the Commissioner shall, after consultation with the 
board, appoint a returning officer" . 

What would be the difference between that and, say, upon 
the recommendation of the board , for the appointments of 
these returning officers? 

Does that Section presently read, " give the Commissioner 
the latitude of not taking the advice of the board, or-. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: As written, the Commissioner receives the ad

vice of the board, but is not bound to follow it. 
If it is the Committee's wish to change that to render him 

bound by the board, then it would have to be changed. 
At the moment, he is free to accept or not to accept their 

advice, after consultation. 
Another alternate would be to provide that the Commis

sioner appoint somebody from a recommendation made by 
the board, and in that case, if the Commissioner did not like 
the first person who was proposed, he would not appoint that 
person, and the board would then be obliged to recommend 
somebody else. But at least with that system, the person would 
ultimately, whoever was appointed, would ultimately have 
been recommended by the board and appointed by the Com
missioner. 

That is kind of a middle of the road approach , but that is 
rather akin to the same situation as legislation. It has to be in 
accordance with both people's wishes. They both have to 
agree. 

The way that we have it now, he has to consult, and then he 
makes a decision. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Since there are areas that we are obvi

ously going to have to look at, I would like to leave Section 9 
and not clear it at the present time. I would like another look at 
it. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Very well. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Or, Section 8, excuse me. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: Yes, just to carry that a little further, 

though, I was just wondering, the Commissioner is responsi
ble for the board in the first place, he appoints the board, and 
can do away with the board at any time he wants to, and I am 
wondering if you change it so that the board is the power and 
he has to go along with the recommendations of the board, you 
are merely just setting up a conflict there, whereas, in the first 
place, the board says no, the Commissioner says yes, and then 
he can say well , we don't need the board anymore. We are not 
gaining anything out of it. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, then, if the Member looks, 
in respect to Section 4, and the delineation of appointments to 
the board, it states very specifically a member may be re
moved for cause by the Commissioner. It has to be by cause 
and it has to be substantiated, so it would be a very important 
decision if any revocation of an appointment were to be made. 
So, it is not a case of just strictly getting rid of the board, it is a 
case of there has to be cause and it has to be substantiated, in 
the public forum. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, just one question. Who is 

going to conduct the inquiry? 

) 



Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. MacDonald? 
Mr. MacDonald: I wonder if to clarify, I might read out to 

you just to refresh your memory from my original notes. I 
spent considerable time on this matter, as you know, in my 
original submission to you. Would the Committee accept this 
one page of notes? 

Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. MacDonald: I recall a suitable vehicle appears to lie 

in the appointment of an elections board by the Commissioner, 
acting on the advice of the Executive Commission, with pow
ers similar to those of a Chief Elections Officer , federal staff, 
and freedom from the restraints of either government policy 
or council influence. 

The following description taken from the Canada Elections 
Act seems appropriate and this is the board to exercise gen
eral direction and supervision over the administrative con
duct of elections and enforce on the part of all elections and 
officers, fairness , impartiality and compliance with the 
Elections Ordinance. 

Recommndations as to details of authority are set out previ
ously in the following comments: if appointment of an elec
tions board is envisioned, then the selection of a board ad
ministrator or director becomes necessary for earlier stated 
reasons. That is the r easons for getting things done quickly. 
Furthermore, to avoid any reflection of government self in
terest, it seems proper that the board be empowered to ap
point or designate it's administrator in much the same man
ner as it appoints or engages clerical and secretarial assis
tants. Perhaps the only substantial difference in board re
cruitment practices would be a statutory requirement for an 
administrative officer. Again, a duty description from the 
Canada Elections Act elaborated seems to suit the adminis
trative officer, to exercise direct supervision of election offic
ers and to issue such instructions as from time to time may be 
deemed necessary to ensure effective execution of the provi
sions of the Elections Ordinance under guidance and general 
direction of the elections board. 

Now, I don't know ifthat helps. That is how I see this system, 
or saw the system last fall when I sent this report in, last 
spring, I beg your pardon. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Thank you, Mr. MacDonald. 
I take it Mr. Lang, that all of Section 8 is now held over for 

further review? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Yes, Mr. Chairman, there is no point in 

clearing this Section until we get this resolved. 
On Clause 9 

Clause 9 agreed to 

On Clause 10 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, I would like to just clarify what 

the intent of the committee has been. What I suggest, if I 
understand your wishes correctly, is that subsection ( 4) of 
Section 10 should be reworded in the last line, "his appoint
ment shall forthwith be terminated by the Commissioner on 
the advice of the Board in the case of r eturning officer, and by 
the Board in the case of an assistant returning officer''. Is that 
what Committee wished? 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, as far as I am concerned, 

yes. 
Mr. Clegg: I just wanted to make certain that that is what 

was requested. 
Mrs. Watson : Fine. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. 
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Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: But I would also hope that when you are 

reviewing this section, to see whether there is adequate direc
tion within the existing legislation, to empower somebodoy to 
suspend a returning officer, if it is needed. You may have to 
add something if there isn't enough in there. 

Not the returning officer, there is a suspension for the assis
tant returning officer. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, if the Honourable Member 

looks at Section 8. (2), it states , 'A returning officer may , at 
any time, be suspened for cause by the board, for a period not 
to exceed 30 days. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Order, please. Order. 
You are not suggesting, Mrs. Watson, this Section 10 be held 

over? You are not suggesting we hold only Section 10? 
Mrs. Watson: No, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Very well. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I am not clear on Section 

10. Section 10. (4) would be held over so that we could bring in 
the necessary amendment? Is that not correct? 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I thought we had just agreed 
to the wording that the witness has just read, for the amend
ment, for the idea, the concept behind it. 

Yes. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: I think what the Minister has 

pointed out that Section 8 has relevance on Section 10. (4). 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: I was just seeking direction from the Commit

tee as to how I should prepare that the amendment, I wasn 't 
attempting to move the amendment at this time. 

I think, perhaps, the amendments , which will be quite 
numerous, will have to be moved at a later stage. 

So, I think we will have to leave this open for amendment. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Thank you , Mr . . clegg. 

On Section 11 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Should we, is the board going to be " in a 

prescribed manner" ? These forms will all be prescribed by 
regulations by the Commissioner, will they, because we refer 
to quite a few forms and they will all be prescribed by the 
Commissioner. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: This is correct, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: I think there is a typo, Mr. Lang, in 

Section 11, should it not be "prescribed", instead of "sub
scribed"? 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Clear. 
Section 11 agreed to 

On Section 12 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, " the board shall cause to be 

published", if you are prescribing these in Commissioner's 
Order, the various officers, the administrator will be ap
pointed by the Commissioner, right? Employed by the board, 
but appointed by the Commissioner, by Commissioner's 
Order? 

The returning officers are being appointed by the Commis
sioner, but the assistant returning officers are being ap
pointed by the board, but will that be done by Commis!:!oner's 



Order. You are saying it will be here pursuant to the authority. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman , that is not the intended mean

ing of Section 11. Section 11 is there to provide the publication 
of the names of people who are appointed in whatever manner 
they are supposed to be appointed to them. It does not intend 
that this section provide the way in which they are appointed, 
the assistant returning officers are appointed by the board 
and this doesn't affect that. 

These people are appointed in different ways. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang ? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, depending on the approp

riate sections in the Ordinance in respect to , for an example 
the appointing of an assistant returning officer under the Sec
tion 9, that would be the pursuant section to which those people 
would be appointed, and in respect to forms and this kind of 
thing, you would look to Section 100, subsection (1) for 
Commissioner's Orders. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, that's what I wanted 

clarified, Mr. Clegg hit it right on the head. " The Board shall 
be caused to be published in the prescribed manner. " Are you 
going to have a form in the regulations, because when you say 
prescribing a matter you are going to have a form which they 
will use to publish. So that is what yQu are meaning. 

Mr. Clegg: That was the intention , it would also give him 
the authority to prescribe the extent of the publication. Three 
weeks in the newspaper or one week on a billboard outside the 
building . 

1\tr. Deputy Chairman: Thank you , Mr. Clegg. 
Clause 11 agreed to 

On Clause 12 

Clause 12 agreed to 

On Clause 13 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Yes, Section 13 does make provision for the 

administrator's r eimbursement or salary to be set by regula
tions , so really, there is no necessity then to necessarily use 
the Public Service Ordinance as we mentioned in that previ
ous section. In here, all of the salaries and expenses are pre
scribed by Commissioner 's Orders. 
Clause 13 agreed to 

On Clause 14 

Clause 14 agreed to 

On Clause 15 

Mr. Deputy C)lairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson : Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question of 15, 

subsection (2)? What do you mean by the phrase: " and at a 
general election, shall be made returnable on a date deter
mined by the Commissioner" . This is the writ. What do we 
mean there? The writ shall be dated, shall specify the day of 
nomination and polling day, "shall be made returnable on a 
date determined by the Commissioner" . We return the writs , 
don't we? 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: It is my understanding that the, when the 

election is called, there is a sequence of time involved, and 
that time is decided in what sequence these events are going to 
take place in including returning of the writs. Is that not cor
rect, Mr. Clegg? 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, the return of the writs refers to 

' . -· 
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the completion of the writ and the official return of the candi
date after the election. This is just one of the deadline dates 
established by the Commissioner . 

This does not provide that the Commissioner, by this order 
or in the writ , can determine polling day, because polling day 
is determined by a fixed number of days after the issue of the 
writ. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Clear on Section 15? 
Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: May I ask just one more question? 
Who determines these dates? Does the board, or does the 

Commissioner, that we refer to in 15.(2)? 
Mr. MacDonald : Every writ of election, excuse me, Mr. 

Chairman. 
Your question is, every date of election shall be dated? 
Mrs. Watson: That is right. 
Mr. MacDonald : Is that what you are ... ? 
Mrs. Watson: Yes, Mr . Chairman, the Commissioner orig

inally determines the date of the election , correct? 
But, the rest of the dates after that , who determines them ? 

Under this Ordinance or by the board . 
Mr. MacDonald: They are determined by the Ordinance. 
Mrs. Watson: By the Ordinance. 
But, Mr. Chairman , you are not, then, you see, then your 

nomination day is so many days after the return of the writs, 
right? The polling day is so many days after the issuing of the 
writs, but then why do we return the return open for the Com
missioner to determine? Why are we not determining these 
under this Ordinance? 

Mr. MacDonald: The date of return of the writ. 
Mrs. Watson: Yes. 
Mr. MacDonald: It could be provided in the Ordinance. 

The return of the writ, Mr. Chairman, if I may, the return of 
the writ is really the official identification, by the returning 
officer, of the result of the election. 

Mrs. Watson: Of the election, right . 
Mr. MacDonald: And, that , in fact , is his response to, in 

this case, the Commissioner, or, as may be, the Clerk of an 
executive council, who then is required to respond to the 
Speaker of the Assembly, and advise the Speaker what has 
happeped. 

The return of the writ is the instrument by which this is done. 
Why the return is left flexible , I am sorry , I cannot say, Mr. 

Chairman. It is a standard format, and I believe, even in the 
Canada Elections Act, that the date will be determined, in 
effect, in the Canada Elections Act, probably by the Chief 
Electoral Officer or somebody like that. 

Mr. Clegg: It could beset out in the act , Mr. Chairman, the 
return date is not necessarily the same as the date on which 
the official result is announced by the returning officer, and 
therefore there is no way in which the returning officer could 
delay announcing an official result, purely because the Com
missioner had set a late return date for the writs. 

It is a procedural matter to make sure all the writs are 
returned to the Commissioner with a declaration by the re
turning officer that he has fulfilled the duties commanded of 
him in the writ and that this was the result, that by the time the 
writs are returned, everybody has received notification of the 
result, and this is perhaps the reason that it is only written in 
formal confirmation of a previous announcement. Maybe this 
is the reason why it is not normally provided as a fixed number 
of days after issue, traditionally. 

) 

) 
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Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, there is one reason, and I 

haven' t looked it up, I must confess. I will look it up after . I 
believe the salaries of members of this Legislature who run 
for re-election are somehow or other tied to the date the writ is 
issued and the return of the writ , so it could make it quite 
appropriate for some people. 

I think those salaries are tied to that , I am not sure. I think 
there is something tied to it. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman , I think the point has been 

raised , and we will have another look at it to see if we can 
maybe tie it down . Does Mr. MacDonald have anything else to 
add? 

Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman , Section 65,(2 ) covers in 
detail the requirements of the r eturning officer at that time, 
on page 69 of your Bill, I believe. 

Apologies to my colleague, here. You know they use like 
" forthwith " and so on, that means like yesterday I suppose 
you return everything you should. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: I would like your clarification, if I 
can have it, Mr. Clegg, if you go to subsection (7) of 15, there is 
reference in (b) " a notice of the withdraw! of the writ shall be 
published in the same manner as the publication of the writ 
pursuant to subsection (1)". My question for clarification is , 
should that not be subsection (3)? That is of Section 15. 

Mr. Clegg: You are correct there, it should be subsection 
(3). 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Should it be (3)? 
Mr. Clegg: Yes. Originally the draft said ''issued pursuant 

to subsection (1)", but the word " issued" seems to have dis
appeared and how it is referring to publication rather than 
issuance, and it should be subject to subsection (3). 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Subsection (3). Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, with respect, if this is 

going to be as a result of a natural disaster or a civil disorder 
or extreme weather, there is certainly going to be a need for 
great haste in notifying all concerned that there is not going to 
be an election. I would hate to see it tied down to the same 
method of publication used in the normal way. 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: I agree, it will have to be done very urgently 

and I think, in fact, that there will, in practice, there would be 
some informal notification. 

But, I think, also, they should be just as extensive a formal
ity in publishing a withdrawal as there was in issuing the writ , 
in the first place. As I say, in practice, that formal publication 
of withdrawal will probably follow by some days after the 
radio announcements and other announcements, to make sure 
that everybody knew that it was going to be put off and there 
was going to be a formal withdrawal. 

Mr. MacDonald: If I might, Mr. Chairman, many of the 
traditioqal expressions of a statute, an elections statute in 
particular, still assume that the media is composed of the 
written media. In many cases in the past, I personally have 
taken that to mean publication by whatever media I found 
most convenient and most necessary. 

It is just a simple wisdom to do so. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: I take it Section 15 is held over. 
Bon. Mr. Lang: That is right, Mr. Chairman. 

On Clause 16 

Clause 16 agreed to 
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On Clause 17 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs . Watson. 
Mrs. Watson : Section 17.(2), where we refer to the office 

being opened during the hours that the polls are open, does 
that mean the polls on polling day? 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, yes, that is the meaning is. It 

was thought that it was probably impractical to try to define in 
the Ordinance, the hours that the office should remain open on 
the days leading up to polling day, because otherwise you 
might find that you were imposing restrictions on somebody 
which may make it very difficult to accept the job of returning 
officer and it might, also, in some cases, be quite unnecessary. 

But, at least it has been felt necessary and has been pro
vided in most elections acts, that that office is open all the time 
on polling day during the hours of the poll. 
Clause 17 agreed to 

On Clause 18 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Berger. 
Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, a question in 18.(1)(b) , 

"on polling day a Canadian citizen". Did the Federal Gov
ernment, the parliament, passed a new immigration laws now 
that English or Commonwealth citizens are no longer Cana
dian citizens? 

Mr. MacDonald: Right. July of 1976, I think their Com
monwealth recognition expired under the Federal Act. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I have a little bit of doubt 

with 18 , subsection (1 ) . It says: " Except as otherwise pro
vided ... , every person who is or becomes resident in a polling 
division between the issue of the writ and the end of revision of 
that list. .. ' ' , I have a lot of concern because there is an ability 
for the boundaries of polling divisions to be altered as soon as 
an election is called or even before. 

It isn 't clear, when should those polling divisions boundaries 
be altered. You have to apply to the board but you can still do 
it. So, you see, and here we have to say you have to be an 
elector in a certain polling division , you have to be a resident 
there between the issue of the writ and the end of the revision 
of the list. What if your polling division boundaries are 
changed? When can they change them, after the writ is is
sued? 

Mr. MacDonald: Polling division boundaries, Mr. Chair
man, as seen earlier in the context of the Ordinance, is the 
responsibility of the returning officer to specify and possibly 
on the request of the board. It is a wise returning officer, of 
course, who, knowing an election is imminent, has all his 
polling boundary work done. 

It is true, as the Honourable Member has indicated that 
there is a possibility that he may not be doing it until th~ 
election is called , but it has to be done before he issu~s a 
proclamation, because the polling division boundaries are de
fined in a proclamation. Now if you check the date at which he 
has to issue a proclamation, the time which he has to issue his 
proclamation, after the issue of the writ , that determines the 
time at which the polling division boundaries must be defined. 
It is prior to a nomination day. · 

Mrs. Watson: Prior to nomination? 
Mr. MacDonald: Definitely. 
Mrs. Watson: This does give me a little copcern, because 

the first time, if this is used in the '78 election, this piece of 
legislation, there will certainly, in some districts, have to be 
extensive revisions to polling provisions because there are 
whole districts that have been changed. This is WHy I am 
asking this question, because of Section 18, and that other· 



section on the revisions , could there be a foul-up on residents 
being enumerated or claiming residency in the correct polling 
division, because that is how the electoral lists are done by 
polling division, not by polling district? Right? That is giving 
me a little bit of concern. 

Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, if I may clarify it. They 
are done by polling divisions, not by electoral districts. 

Mrs. Watson: Right. 
Mr. MacDonald: Yes, you said polling districts. They are 

done by polling divisions. 
Mrs. Watson: These are ones whose boundaries could well 

be changed, because the district boundaries have already 
been changed for the next election. 

Mr. MacDonald: District boundaries change, polling divi
sion boundaries or changes in district boundaries require 
changes in polling division boundaries, of course, where these 
are co-terminus or in effect come together. Within the large 
ambit of an electoral district, of course, most of the polling 
divisions will stay the same except you take it out of this one 
and put it in this one. If I may be pardoned for gesturing in 
your committee. 

The changes are not as manifold following a redistribution 
as you might think, because the population has not moved, just 
some lines between electoral districts. 

Mrs. Watson: And the polling. Particularly, wouldn't it be 
quite significant say, in Whitehorse, where they have had five 
constituencies and now they will have seven? 

Mr. MacDonald: Let me respond, Mr. Chairman. Cer
tainly. the City of Whitehorse will be divided up on a somewhat 
different basis. I do not what your division proposals will be or 
what they will be accepted , but it will be divided up on a 
somewhat different basis, but block by block, str eet by street, 
the people remain in roughly the same place. There won't be 
that much difference in the changes of boundaries that will 
preoccupy a new returning officer or a returning officer to a 
new constituency a great deal , except to make sure that he 
has, a~ he defines the polling divisions on the boundaries of his 
new district, to align them to comply with certain require
ments of 50 or more electors, and so forth. 

It won't be a great upsetting feature. I appreciate your 
point, and the Federal Act goes to considerable length to re
quire time given to the Chief Electoral Officer and, I believe, 
he asks for six months after any change in boundaries in which 
to accomplish this realignment. He is extraordinarily cauti
ous. 

Mrs. Watson: Why? 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Just to pursue this a little further then, for 

an example, if an individual in Whitehorse were to move from 
one electoral district to another prior to the proclaimation, 
would that individual be voting in the new area he had moved 
into? Then, if he had moved after the day of proclaimation, he 
would have to vote in a polling division of the riding that he was 
originally in? 

Mr. Clegg: No, he can still apply ... 
· Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, he can still apply to vote in his 
new district if he wishes to as provided in the Ordinance. So the 
option is there. 

I would just like to respond a little further to Mrs. Watson's 
question, Mr. Chairman, to say that the test of whether a 
person is enumerated as an elector in a polling district comes 
during the enumeration process. 

The enumeration process depends on the appointment of 
.enume.rators and the definition of polling divisions, which they 
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are gomg to go out and enumerate. 
The returning officer cannot instruct his enumerators to 

start work until his polling divisions are complete and rede
fined. Those will be the polling divisions which are defined in 
the proclaimation he issues, so in practice, even if he does 
re-organize his polling divisions after the issuance of the writ, 
he cannot commence the enumeration process until he has 
completed that. 

Therefore, a person will not be visited by an enumerator , 
until the polling division has been fixed , and at that time, they 
will know. They will be enumerated as a resident of that pol
ling division. So, there can be quite some busy activity , but I do 
not think there will be any trouble because there will be no way 
in which a polling division can be restructured after a person 
has been enumerated. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: I think if members check Section 
40 when we come to it , you will find some explanation dealing 
with polling stations. 
Clause 18 agreed to 

On Clause 19 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I had a query on 18.(2), 

I am sorry, regarding persons not qualified to vote, and that 
includes people undergoing punishment as an inmate. It is not 
a serious question, Mr. Chairman, and I hope it won't be 
judged facetious , but I am just wondering if the witnesses 
have given consideration to the present trend in many courts 
to give diversionary sentences or to give week-end sentences, 
and how we are going to get around this? Are they considered 
to be undergoing punishment as an inmate, even though they 
only come up for the week-end, or does that mean they can or 
can not vote? 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. MacDonald, or Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. MacDonald: It has always been my personal stand on 

the matter which is as simple as this, if the man was incarcer
ated and could not attent at a poll , he couldn't vote and that 
was all there was to it. This person undergoing punishment as 
an inmate in any prison or lock-up for the commission of an 
offence, I would have to say that if , for example, it was a young 
man who was out on a week-end pass, and his mother had 
during the registration period had his name put on the list, and 
he was otherwise eligible and qualified, that if he was out and 
free to go and vote on Monday, he would go and vote, whether 
he was deprived of his liberty otherwise or not. 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, ifl may add, in amplification to 
Mr. MacDonald's statement, I entirely agree, although on 
such an occasion that person would still be undergoing 
punishment but he would not be an inmate on that day. 

Mr. MacDonald: And he wouldn't be deprived of his lib
erty. 

Mr. Clegg: So, I think he could vote. If he hadn't been 
permitted to be out, he wouldn't be-

Bon. Mrs. Whyard : Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Clegg: If you feel that is improper, I feel that we 

should suggest tighter wording. That is what I am coming 
around to. If you feel it is wrong that a person in prison out on a 
day pass could vote, I think we should tighten this wording. It 
was something I had not considered. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, there are a few prob

lems, because it does verge on a bit of a discriminatory basis. 
You know the system of jurisprudence, if you are accused of a 
defence and you go to court and you plead not guilty and at any 
rate you are either on remand or the judge sets bail and you 
are in a financial predicament, or you don't know anybody, 
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you are not a solid member of the community though you are 
an elector and you are not allowed bail money, so you are 
incarcerated for that time while you plead not guilty while the 
time comes up. Another person because he is known in the 
community can go out on his own recognizance who can put a 
thousand dollars bail down or get out until the appeal section is 
heard. 

I thought that the single overall principle that our rule of law 
was based on was that you are innocent until you plead guilty 
and if that person does plead not guilty and hasn 't got the 
financial wherewithall to get out on bail or to get out on his own 
recognizance, that that person should definitely as having 
plead not guilty, and because of the circumstances is incarc
erated, should he be denied the right because of those circum
stances to vote? I think that we are making some discriminat
ory principles with this legislation and I hope that all Mem
bers are aware of this because I don't see how it cannot maybe 
be helped but we should be aware that that is what we are 
doing with this legislation. Or would you agree? 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, I do agree that , in fact , it does 

discriminate against a person who finds himself in jail await
ing trial , but, the traditional system has already given the 
judge the power to deprive that person of his liberty , and, 
therefore, he was already deprived maybe because of the fact 
that he is not well known or he is relatively impoverished, he is 
already deprived of his major liberty, that of freedom of 
movement. The other consequences, he may not vote on vot
ing day, is, perhaps, ... 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Kind of! ike poking him when you are 
down. 

Mr. Clegg: ... not too serious. 
But, I think, in fact, that flows from the judge's authority to 

deprive him of his liberty and I believe that Mr. MacDonald 
agrees and has taken the position that it is administratively 
unacceptable to take the responsibility of holding polls in pris
ons and to visit every lock-up and prison to administer the poll 
to people who are only there because they not have been con
victed, but because of the judge's discretion lawfully given. 

I think this is a discrimination, but it has been justified in the 
administration of justice. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: That is the point I was leading up to, 

because the man who is in there in the remand cell, may or 
may not be found guilty of any crime. 

The man who is serving his sentence on weekends will be 
free to go and vote if it does not happen to be those days. · 

Mr .. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, if I might. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. MacDonald. 
Mr. MacDonald: If the Members of the Committee feel 

strongly enough about it, there is a simple solution to it. He can 
vote by proxy, perhaps, and the disqualification can be hand
led in the same manner that other people who are incompaci
tated in movement. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre. 
Mr. Mcintyre: Mr. Chairman, I would be in favour of 

opening a polling station up in the jug. I think everybody 
should have a chance to vote. 

Mr. Chairman: I don't think it is quite possible: 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Whyard, you have a 'ques

tion? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I didn't hear your comment? 
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Mr. Deputy Chairman: I said I don 't th ink it was quite 
possible. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Anything is possible, Mr. Chairman. 
Some Members : Clear . 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I don't know if it is clear. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman : Is it Committee's wish that we 

hold Section 18 over for further review? Or do you wish to clear 
it through? 
Clause 18 agreed to 

On Clause 19 

Clause 19 agreed to 

On Clause 20 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr . Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, this is a very important 

section and, if it is Committee 's wish , maybe the Chairman 
could read it out loud and go through each section by section 
because it is very important. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Very well , will do. 

Mr . Fleming? 
Mr. Fleming: I need possibly a little clarification on (7): 

··continuous residence for at least five days immediate pre
ceding his enumeration'', in other words that person could be 
possibly from Whitehorse or this area here in a polling divi
sion, and he would maybe be a hundred miles from here in a 
hotel, if he was there five days before, regardless of his occu
pation or anything else, would he then be entitled to vote? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, subsection (7 ) is restrictive, 

not permissive. In other words, it doesn't permit the person to 
apply to vote in a certain area. What it says is that if a perlion 
had a right to apply because he is covered by another provi
sion of the Ordinance, for example, if he is a worker temporar
ily working at a difference place, he is limited by subsection 
(7) . Subsection (7 ) does not stand by itself giving the right to a 
person to be enumerated in a new area. It limits the applica
tion. 

The purpose of subsection (7 ) is to- prevent a candidate 
trucking in supporters into a marginal district, and putting 
them up in theY for one night and giving them a temporary job 
and saying okay, he's come here, five bucks, and I have got 
another vote. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, on subsection (7 ) in re

spect to the proxy vote, also if a person were to move in say for 
example Teslin four days prior to the enumeration , he 
wouldn't be eligible to vote there but he could vote by proxy . 
vote in his own riding as long as he fulfilled the qualifications 
as outlined in Section 18. (1) . 

Mr. Chairman, I have a question for the witnesses, for 
clarification. For an example the very general statements 
and I know the difficulty we had in drafting this , but for exam
ple in 2l.(c) say if a person leaves Yukon with the intention of 
making his residence elsewhere, he therefore loses his resi
dence in Yukon, how would he ever be able to prove that. I 
guess you couldn't. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, many of these tests are subjec

tive to the elector himself, and this is the situation with the law 
on residence and on domicile which applies to other matters in 
family law, and in fact , in many cases, the person whoever is 
determining this issue will have to say to the person, when you 
left was it your intention to live elsewhere? If the person says 
no, it was my intention to return here, I left my possessions . 
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here and l never formed intention to live anywhere else, then 
they would have to admit he has not lost his residence. It is a 
personal thing, in many ways. 

Some of the tests are factual, there has to be an actual move 
coupled with an actual intention. The actual move is physical , 
the actual intention to relocate is subjective and is something 
on which really only the person himself can finally say. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Clear on Section 20? 
Clause 20 agreed to 

On Clause 21 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang, do you wish me to read 21 as 
well? 

Hon. Mr. Lang : Mr. Cha irman, I must say you are doing 
very well, but unless it was Committee's wish, I would just as 
soon not. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Thank you . 
Clause 21 agreed to 

On Clause 22 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I am very gratified to see 

that this piece of legislation is giving the importance that it is 
to the process of enumeration. I think the Canada E lections 
Act has been, is really quite deficient in that area, and also the 
pay that they pay to enumerators is extremely deficient when 
they pay them for so much a name, when in a place like the 
Yukon Territory, where you drive 25 miles to get a name, you 
just don 't get enumerators. 

So, I am pleased that, and there is a lot of detail and there is a 
lot of time devoted to the process of enumeration, because that 
is , in my estimation, a very, very important part of the elec
tion process. 

I do, I am a little concerned with subsection 15, of22, and it is 
on page 17. 

This, with that, are you going to get anyone to take the job, 
with Section 15 in there? 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg : Mr. Chairman, this provision does exist in the 

Canada Elections Act and in every provincial act which I have 
looked at. It is really necessary, it does restrict the offense to a 
person who willfully and without reasonable cause. It doesn't 
make it an offense if it is my neglect or inadvertence. 

I think a potential enumerator, who is concerned that he 
might get into trouble if he deliberately drops somebody, is 
probably not an appropria te person to have anyway. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. MacDonald. 
Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, there is an error in sub

section 16, for the sake of your Members. " Not later than the 
26th day", it should be, rather than the "29th day". 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: A typo error, Mr. MacDonald? 
Mr. MacDonald: Yes. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Thank you. 

Section 22 agreed to 

· Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. MacDonald, subsection 23, of 
22, there is a typo error there where it makes reference, again, 
to that previous typo error you made us aware of. It should be 
26 instead of 29. 

Mr. MacDonald: Wait a minute, that has to do with revi
sion date, that doesn't have to do with the transmission of the 
lists of electors. This is the revision date which commences on 
the 29th, after nomination day, which is the 26th. 

You see, the lists have to be in by the 26th, Mr. Chairman, 
. because nomination day comes on the 26th. 
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Mr. MacDonald: This list would have to be given to those 
people who were nominated, then on the 29th, they s it for 
revision of that list. So that is 29th to the 36th day. 

Mr. Chairman: Okay. 
Mr. MacDonald: I might add something here while we are 

at 23. 
Mr. Chairman: Yes, Mr. MacDonald? 
Mr. MacDonald: It has become a rather important time 

concern in some other people's minds, not mine particularly 
and , even with th is draft , I would personally like the Commit
tee to consider the possibility of striking out the word Saturday 
from the exclusions, giving one more day in which revisions to 
the list and proxy certificates can be issued when these are all 
done at the same time in this act. It says from the 29th day to 
the 36th day after the issuanced of the writ, excluding Satur
days , Sundays and public holidays. It is my personal feeling 
that Saturdays should be open. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, I would think that 
would be a very practical suggestion. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, we will have a look at that 
particular section then. 

Mr. MacDonald: Thank you , Mr. Chairman. 
Clause 23 agreed to 

On Clause 24 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, in Section 24 , subsection (3), 

there is a word on line five, " creditable", and which should 
read credable. The two things are not necessarily the same. 

Mr. Chairman: Thank you, Mr. Clegg. 
Clause 24 agreed to 

On Clause 25 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berger : . Mr. Chairman, on 25.(4): "The decision of a 

revising officer may be appealed to the returning officer." 
and yet on 24. ( 2) we say: ''A returning officer may himself act 
as a revising officer .. " . What kind of other courses of appeal 
would there be then? When you are actually appealing the 
same person. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, normally, the revising officers. 

are appointed separately from other election officers, but rec
ognizing the difficulty which may well be incurred in finding 
suitable people to act here , we made as much flexibility as 
possible in allowing people to take duplicate roles. 

This situation, in fact, would be a difficult one if it happened 
to be the decision of the revising officer. We haven't made any 
provision, it would be possible , if the Committee wished, for an 
amendment to provide that where the decision appealed is 
from the returning officer acting as revising officer, then the· 
appeal should be to another revising officer. 

Generally, this appeal is just, more or less, at the same 
level, but it is , I think, in practice, what would happen would 
be that if a revising officer found that one of his own revision 
appeals, his own revision decisions was being appealed, he 
would ask the decision to be taken again by a different revising 
officer. 

I think that is a practical solution with the present wording.' 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Berger. 
Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would like the 

witnesses- first, it is much better that we spell it out in the 
Ordinance, and make provision for it. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Clegg . 
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- Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, if you wish, I will prepare an 
amendment for your consideration. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: What section is that again , Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Section 25, isn't it? What section 

are you referring to? 
Mr. Berger: Section 25.(4), Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Mr. MacDonald. 
Mr. MacDonald: If I might, Mr. Chairman, I have some, 

from experience, questions in my own mind about going any
where beyond the ruling of a returning officer. The provision 
here to authorize a r eturning officer to act as a revising officer 
is purely an emergency situation. In almost all cases, he will 
want to appoint someone, if he has them, to do the revision 
work. It may be that he could, his revising officer took sick or 
something like that, in the middle of affairs, he had to jump in 
and fill in. 

But, any appeal beyond the returning officer in the matter of 
this kind I don 't think should ever be recommended, because it 
becomes a dog's breakfast. A returning officer, his decision 
should be final. 

I impress on you, if I can, that a returning officer , the elec
tors must have pretty complete faith in their returning officer. 
If they don 't , get another one for the next time around, be
cause he is the key to the successful operation of the whole 
thing. 

I even debated the r ecommendation of an appeal to him 
from a revising officer's decision, however, there are some 
points on this matter of proposing revisions by deletion or 
addition of names that are a bit touchy and it seemed approp
riate to provide for an appeal but only to the returning officer. 

In the case where he made the decision, as far as I would 
recommend to you, it would be final and no revision to anyone 
else. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, in the normal course, 
the revising officer would consult if there was a question of 
some interpretation and if he was to constitute that as an 
appeal. Normally, it is done in the presence of the person who 
is appealing or asking for further information, and it removes 
the necessity to go any further . 

Mr. MacDonald: I might add Mr. Chairman, there has 
been a question raised outside of your Committee here that we 
hav~ neglected to provide for advice to the elector on the list 
agail}st whom the question was raised, Mr. Minister, and I 
beli~'v:e that it is quite reasonable that somewhere in here we 
also consider an amendment requiring the revising officer to 
advise the elector, whose name is either being removed or 
added to the Jist after sufficient evidence has been provided. I 
think it is very necessar y. 

Mr'. Deputy Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in respect to what the wit

ness has just said, do you have any idea what the appropriate 
section that should be brought up in? Should that be brought up 
in 25 .. (1) or should it be further along in the legislation, be
caus~ we. are clearing these sections. 

Mr. MacDonald: If I might, Mr. Chairman, it should be set 
out in the the clauses that detail the operation of revision, doo 
this, do this, do this, do this. That takes us to Section 26, I 
believe. 

Mr: Chairman, in response to the Minister's question, I 
think Mr. Clegg can find the place for us, if you think it is 
reasonable. 

Mt. Deoputy Chairman: · Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: In 24, subsection ( 4), it states that if the revis

ing officer is satisfied that a person is on the list who is not 

Page 324 

qualified, that he shall remove the name. That might be an 
appropriate place, because it is a removal where notice is 
critical , because it is a person who has lost a right. Where a 
person's name is added, he doesn 't have any complaint really, 
but I think I would suggest that if you wish to provide for notice 
to be given to the person, that his name is being removed, then 
that is the appropriate place. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: You are suggesting that Section 
24.(4) be taken back for further review to take into account 
that question? 

Mr. Clegg: Yes, I would propose adding a further subsec-
tion immediately after that to provide for notice. 

Mr. Deputy Chairman: Is that Committee's wish? 
Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. Deputy Chairman: Very well, I will declare a brief 

recess. 
Recess 

Mr. Chairman: I call this Committee to order. 
Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, as we are going through 

the Bill , we are clearing a lot of these sections and it has come 
to my attention that we have had some comments, in respect 
to this Ordinance, from the Chief Electoral Officer of Canada, 
Mr. Hamel. 

It is my understanding that Mr. MacDonald, this evening, 
will be going through it and there is a couple of areas there 
could be some valid criticism, in respect to some of the sec
tions we may clear. 

So, I would just like consent of Committee, if we do find 
areas that could possibly be improved, could I get consent 
from Committee the possibility of going through various sec
tions that have already been cleared, if we find that there are 
discrepancies, due to his critique. 

Mr. Chairman: I am sure that would be no problem, Mr. 
Lang. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Also, Mr. Chairman, in respect to Section 
25.(4), that we were discussing, I would like to hear 
Committee's comments, in respect to Section 4. Mr. Mac
Donald, I think, brought up some valid areas of concern for an 
appeal procedure and this kind of thing, especially when you 
are right in the midst of an election. I would just like to hear 
what Members have to say. 

It is my own personal opinion it should be, maybe, left the 
way it is. 

Mr. Chairman: I do not think we have much comment, one 
way or the other, Mr. Lang. 
Clause 25 agreed to 

On Clause 26 

Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, when you are referring to a 
deputy returning officer, there, that is the first time. 

Mr. Chairman: No, it is included. 
Mr. MacDonald. 
Mr. MacDonald: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman, I didn't hear 

the Member's question 
Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson. 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, Section 26.(1), refers to a 

deputy returning officer. I believe it is the first time in the 
Ordinance. We talked about assistant returning officers, but 
we have a deputy there, Section 26.(1). 

Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, if I may, they are two 
entirely different people. The deputy returning officer is the 
person who runs the polls. The assistant returning officer is ,I 



formerly, I think, called an election clerk, is the assistant to 
the returning officer, who assists him in operating the whole 
electoral district and, who also, normally acts as the revising 
officer. 

The D.R.O. , as you probably know him as, is the poll 
operator. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard : Mr. Chairman, is this a special breed 

of constable? 
Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, if the question is directed 

to me, I assume the Member means as different from a peace 
officer, a normal peace officer; yes, it is a person who may be 
appointed by the deputy returning officer to help keep peace at 
the polls. 

Hpn. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, a bouncer? 
Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, if you will permit, it is a 

judgment call. We found that the very best constables were 
good looking young ladies who effectively quelled most dis
turbances. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Right on, thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: That seems to be the most effective way to 

control the bars around Whitehorse too. 
Mr. MacDonald: It controls a lot of things, doesn't it. 

Clause 26 agreed to 

On Clause 27 
Clause 27 agreed to 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: In (6), I may bemissingthepoint here, 

but why is this proclamation sent to every person who was a 
candidate at the last election, they may not even be around 
any more? 

Mr. MacDonald: At the risk of exposing my colleague, I 
will respond. It is taken directly from the Federal Act, the 
precise wording used in the Federal Act and Mr. Clegg in his 
drafting, with my full agreement, relied heavily on some of 
the sections of the Federal Act to do this sort of thing. I wasn't 
looking at it too closely, I couldn't agree with the Member 
more, Mr. Chairman. I can't understand why either, and I 
don't know what Mr. Clegg's thoughts on it are. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, this provision appears in some 

of the provincial acts as well, and it seems to me, and I left it in 
deliberately, it seems to me that it has been generally recog
nized that people who stood for election on a previous occasion 
as well as those who have already declared themselves as 
candidates, and this is before nominations are closed, so that 
the candidates are not yet fixed, the people who have been 
candidates in previous elections probably have a particular 
interest in the forthcoming election, and it seems that this has 
been accepted as a reasonable thing to do, to give them notice 
of the election in case it by some terrible chance escapes their 
notice. You might well feel that this is in the present age of 
very superior communications that tl1is is so unlikely that it is 
unnecessary to remind them and that they should not be a 
privileged people. I left that in because it seemed to be a 
general practice in Canada that they did in fact receive a 
notice ofthat proclamation. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger. 
Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, the27.(2), I can see a problem 

arising,in that, where candidates, like in a riding like Camp
bell, you have Ross River on one end, you have Upper Liard on 
the other end, and Teslin on the other side. It is sort of a 
triangle, and wouldn't it be possible to have the deputy return
ing officer there to file the nomination papers also, or does it 
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have to be the returning officer, to be filed in one place only, 
because there are three different communities, approxi
mately with the same amount of people there? 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg. 
Mr. Clegg: The Ordinance does provide, elsewhere, and I 

can't recall the exact section , that the returning officer may 
delegate to his assistant returning officer, and, if you will 
recall, he may appoint more than one assistant returning 
officer. 

He may delegate to him or to them the power to receive 
nominations, and this was pursuant to recommendations, in 
Mr. MacDonald's report , that there were some constituten
cies in Yukon, which did have a very wide population, with 
several centres, so that this could be arranged, that nomina
tions could be received in, maybe, two or three different cities. 

So, I think you will find, as we get through this , it is provided 
for. 
Clause 27 agreed to 

On Clause 28 

Mr. Fleming: Just a typographical error, I think Mr. 
Chairman, in the second line, is that not "is", not ' 'in"? 

Mr. Chairman: Yes. 
Clause 28 agreed to 

On Clause 29 

Mr. MacDonald: Mr. Chairman, I must admit that 29.(1) 
is a pretty serious part of this Ordinance, to all of the Members 
assembled in Committee, and I should hope that they clearly 
understand it. I think they have gone over it with Mr. Clegg 
before. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: As I understand it here, he would have 30 

days in which to file a statement by himself , and then, if, 
becoming elected, he would have another 30 days. Is that the 
understanding in that section? 

Mr. Chairman: ·Mr. Clegg. 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, the intent of subsection (1) is 
that he filed the statement upon nomination and he must then 
divest himself within thirty days of his election. The statement 
of his disqualifications must be filed upon his nomination. 

Mr. MacDonald: That would be, in my mind, thirty days 
following the official declaration of his election, that is the 
return of the writ or the official declaration by the returning 
officer; not polling day necessarily, so he is not declared 
elected until-I think we had better look at that. It would be my 
understanding that it should be on the official-

Mr. Clegg: Yes, it should be. Mr. Chairman, in line six of 
29.(1) the words polling day should read his election, as you 
will see in the end of that subsection it refers to the fact that he 
must divest himself within thirty days of his election. 

I would like to make a comment about the correction of 
errors, I think that we can only leave as typographical errors 
those items which the law clerk could change of his own au
thority, and I think there are a number of these things which 
are in fact typographical errors, but we will have to propose 
amendments to change them although they are very minor 
things. I am keeping a note of them on that basis. 
Clause 29 agreed to 
On Clause 30 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman, in 29.(3): "A candi

date who has filed a statement. .... and who is subsequently 
elected and who fails within thirty days ... to divest himself of. 
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the grounds" ,do we say anywhere whose responsibility it is to 
pin that down for each elected candidate? Who follows 
through? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, the administrator of elections 

and the board have the authority to enforce the provisions of 
the Ordinance, and it would be their duty to follow these 
through. The statements are filed with the returning officer, 
they are published, and they become part of the public record, 
and therefore not only must the board follow this part of their 
administrative duties, but any member of the public will know 
what disqualification that person has because the fact that the 
statement has been filed, it will be publicized. So any of the 
members of the public can also track this down. But it is 
primarily, I think Mr. MacDonald will agree, it is the respon
sibility of the board or somebody delegated by them to check 
that these things are followed through. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard? 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: I think this is rather important nitty 

gritty, because if for example your elections board, checking, 
found that this candidate had not, as yet, reported that he had 
divested himself, how long do you give him? Is there a period 
of grace, what if he is in the process of trying to unload what
ever it is he owns that would be a conflict and he hasn 't been 
able to? You don't just put it in a blind trust in five minutes 
either, Mr. Chairman. 1 

We have given him 30 days, after the election. On that 30th 
day, does the board say, yea or nay, that's it? 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, that is the intention of the sec
tion, as drafted now, that there is no grace period and that a 
member who seeks election and knows that he has a disqual
ification, has to prepare his affairs so that he can treat a 
diversement in time. 

He will in fact have, from the time he decides to run, which 
will be sometime between the issuance of the writ and nomina
tion day, until30 days after he is elected. 

Mr. Chairman: What is the practice in other jurisdictions, 
Mr. Clegg? 

Mr. Clegg: The practice varies, but, generally speaking, 
this subject is not well covered in any precident I found and, 
generally speaking, a person in other jurisdictions has to di
verse himself before he can become a candidate. 

This could become extremely difficult for a person who has 
some particular office, which would disqualify himself. He 
has to resign, he may not be in a position to get his office back 
again, or may own some property or some contractural in
terests which he has to dispose of. 

Under the Canada Elections Act, a member who is a MLA in 
a provincial assembly, and this often happens, cannot be 
nominated as a candidate. This means that if a provincial 
MLA wishes to become a candidate in a federal election, as 
many do, he has to resign before nomination day, in the elec
tion. Of course, as you all well know, there is no such thing as a 
conditional resignation from an assembly. Once he has res
igned, he is finished. 

So, if he is not elected, then he is out, with the game. 
In the Territory, where a small number of people take a very 

active part in a large number of public offices, it seemed to us 
to be particularly important to enable people to leave one foot 
on the bank before they jump for the rock. This is a unique and 
novel provision, as far as I am aware, where a member may, 
in fact, seek nomination while he is disqualified, providing 
that he does, in fact, file this statement, which is to be followed 
through. 
~on. Mrs. Whyard: Mr. Chairman. 
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Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Whyard. 
Hon. Mrs. Whyard: Then, Mr. Chairman, since we do live 

in the Yukon, this candidate has been elected, but before he 
has divested himself, there is a contest, a controversion, or 
whatever, is put in motion, he has to still divest himself of all 
these interests within 30 days of his election, and he could still 
be dumped. · 

Mr. Clegg: He won't be declared officially elected while 
there is a recount. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: So, he doesn 't have to? 
Mr. Clegg: So, the time doesn't run until the recount is 

finished, but, if there was a controverted election issue, then 
he might, in fact, find himself in a very unfortunate situation. 

But, in any event, he would be better off than he would be 
anywhere else, because, in any other place, he would have had 
to have resigned before nomination day. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McKinnon? 
Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I just find it difficult . 

In normal situations I could see the thirty day period, but there 
should be all kinds of circumstances, and you only think of a 
couple of them. If a person has obviously been doing business 
with a person who he really trusts and confides in who happens 
to be his legal advisor and that person is on holidays or is not 
available for a period of t ime to be able, for him, to put his 
affairs in that type of order within the thirty days, the notice 
that he has to file. I think that could be an area. 

I could see an area where a person had an apartment block 
situation that was renting on a guaranteed rate of occupancy, 
to the Territorial Government, you just don't go about selling 
an apartment block in thirty days under normal reasons, but I 
think if the person is making an attempt to do these things, · 
that there should be some further period of grace allowed, just 
a cut-off day, thirty days, if a person's legal advisor falls sick, 
is ill or any of these things happen, then and whack, because of 
these extenuating circumstances over which you have no con
trol, you are ineligible any longer to be considered as elected 
to the Assembly. 

I just can't understand if the person is in the process of 
divesting himself of these interests and for any number of 
reasons the thirty day period doesn't hold true, then I think 
that we are just wasting the taxpayers time and money going 
to a further election by making him ineligible to b~ a candidate 
to this Assembly when he is doing everything in his power to 
divest himself of his interest. 

It just seems that there is no period of grace at all because of 
certain extenuating circumstances that could arise. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Clegg? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, there is one provision in the Act 

which could be activated to save a situation, if it was a truly 
unforeseen or emergency situation, such as the member does 
describe, and that is provision of 7.(1) which empowers the 
board in an emergency or unusual or unforeseen circums
tances where the provisions of the Ordinance do not accord the 
exigency of the situation to extent the time for doing any act. 

Now I don't think that this could be used to apply just to an 
extension if a person needed more time to get a reasonable 
price for his investments, but if he was placed in unusual 
circumstances because of some emergency, maybe illness or 
some particular cirumstance which is unforeseen, the Board 
would have the power to extend that time. But the member 
could not become sworn in as a Member of the Assembly until 
he had divested himself. One of the reasons why ~e advised a 
short time period was that we felt that the Assembly is entitled 
to the attendance of a Member as soon as reasonably possible 
after an election. 



It won't cover all circumstances but it would cover 
emergency situations. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, at the same time, when we 

were discussing it, it was my understanding that the timef
rame in respect to when the individual decides to run has to be 
taken into account as well which is in the area of twenty to 
maybe even sixty days, and so subsequently you have a period 
of two to three months if you are serious about running, and 
these things can be done at the same time. 

Hon. Mrs. Whyard: You have to get elected first. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Well, I realize you have to be elected, but 

at the same time you approach the people you have to in 
respect to divesting yourself because you know you have to do 
this. Obviously, I do think the time is available. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. MacDonald. 
Mr. MacDonald: I don't know whether it is worth anything 

to add, Mr. Chairman, that appropos of this particular situa
tion, there are very strong schools of thought existing, cer
tainly, in other jurisdictions, and possibly in the YNkon Territ
ory, that says that anyone who ever had anything to do with 
the affairs of government and spending government money 
and so on, should not be eligible. 

You know, it is because, in the Yukon,so much of the work is 
done with government money, contracting and so forth and so 
on, we decided to try this particular avenue to encourage 
competent people to run as candidates in elections to the As
sembly. But, we can't forget the fact that in some areas, that is 
a very hard no-no. If you even smelled like you had anything to 
do with government, they won't touch you. 

On the other hand, at the same time, the man who is in that 
position, albeit he is simply earning a decent living, under 
circumstances that are perhaps not of his making, is going to 
hear about it on the hustings from his opponents, no matter 
whom he might be. They are going to point to the candidate 
who is working with, say, government contracts, and say to 
the voters, I am purer than he is, etcetera. It all washes in the 
same suds. 

Hon. Mr. McKinnon: Mr. Chairman, I won't give up on it 
on one point, because I think that there should be some period 
of grace in this Section here, not having to go to the emergency 
section of the Bill , and it just seems to me that when you are 
trying to attract candidates for political office, when you men
tion the pay, the working conditions and the pension plan, that 
is not very attractive to them, in the original type of instance, 
and then you get down to the point where you are trying to 
attract those very people who are capable of running the big
gest business in the Yukon, which is the business of the people 
of the Yukon, the Government of the Yukon, and those are the 
very ones who are affected most by this type of provision, in 
the Ordinance, where there is a 30 day clause, and even if you 
are trying to divest yourself of your interests, buddy, if you 
have not made it, that is tough luck, without going to an 
emergency section of the board. 

I am telling you, when you go and try to ask candidates to 
apply or take out nomination papers and they look at what has 
to be done to be eligible to run as a candidate, and what they 
are getting into, those type of people make the decision, who 
are successful business and successful at running business in 
the Yukon, say, it is just too much to give up and I just can't 
afford to do it at this time. 

I say to you, Mr. Chairman, that those are the people more 
and more and more that this Government has to attract into 
this Chamber, to be able to run, as I say, the biggest business 
in the Yukon, which is the people's business, in the Govern
ment of the Yukon Territory. 
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I just can't see why it has to be so adamant that the 30 day 
period, without any period of grace considering exceptional 
circumstances, except to go the emergency provisions, are 
pretty unattractive for a person who is seriously attempting, 
after having been elected , to divest himself of his business 
interests. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming? 
Mr. Fleming: Mr. Chairman, I just have to get up and 

agree with the Member for Local Government, absolutely. If a 
person has been elected, I am certainly sure that a little more 
grace would not hurt for the simple reason that in the final 
analysis if he does not divest himself of all those interests, he is 
going to be guilty of an offence and liable to quite a fine. 
Therefore, I think there is not much doubt that if the person 
has signed the papers and says he will do such a thing, that 
there is no doubt that he is going to be trying very hard to do it. 
I see no reason to not give him a little more grace than what we 
have in the thirty days here. It is a very short time to turn over 
a business or anything in that manner. I would certainly like to 
see at least another thirty days or sixty days , sixty to ninety 
days at least, because what are you going to hurt? The longer 
he stays the more his penalty will be, if he doesn't get rid of it 
finally. 

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Watson? 
Mrs. Watson: Mr. Chairman, I am a little short of patience 

today when I hear the kind of debate that is going on now. It 
makes my fuse just a little bit shorter. 

When I think what we have already done in the legislation, 
we have let somebody who has a conflict of interest situation, 
put their name upsto run for an election. We let them not have 
to make any personal commitments as far as their financial 
conflict of interest whatsoever. They can run for an election, 
they can win, and they still have thirty days to divest them
selves of that conflict of interest, and they are still profitting, 
probably, that thirty days from government funds. 

Even taking members of the Public Service if they want to 
run for an election, they are not going to let them stay on and 
collectt their salary thirty days after they are elected, and 
that salary might mean just as much to them as the conflict of 
interest of a businessman, and if he is such a good business
man that we really need in this House, then he should be able to 
plan well enough ahead. He has got anywhere from sixty to 
ninety days to know what he is going to do if he wins. I would 
hope that we don't elect somebody who needs more than sixty 
to ninety days to divest himself of all of his interest because it 
may be too expensive and too rich for this humble Assembly. 

Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard? 
MsMillard: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I canonlyhartily agree. I 

can't see allowing anyone sitting in this House more than 
thirty days without divesting. 

At any rate, my question is, isn't there a certain amount of 
time between the time he knows he is elected before the writ is 
returned to him. It seems to me mine was an awful long time 
coming, at least two weeks if not a month, so that it adds to the 
thirty days in that period of time. 

What would be the average sort of time between the public 
announcement of his election and the official return of the 
writ? 

Mr. Chairman: You mean the polling day? 
Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, the time difference which the 

member will have actually extra, is the difference between 
the unofficial announcement on which will probably be later 
on polling day, and the day on which the official announce
ment of the election is made. It will be before the return of the 
writ. That is the thirty days runs from the official announce
ment, and that will be a period of ten days, so he will have forty 
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days after polling day. 
The other consideration is-
Mr. MacDonald: It is also two days from the issue of the 

writ. 
Mr. Clegg: Yes. 

Mr. Clegg: Yes, so he will have up to 82 days, in issue of the 
writ. 

The other consideration is that some members run not ex
pecting to win, and not, perhaps, preparing themselves or 
being prepared to put themselves in a position to stand if they 
do win and therefore such a person wouldn't be preparing his 
affairs and those might be the people who have got into a 
problematical situation, a person who ran a determined cam
paign and expected to win, would inevitably be preparing 
himself for this. 

There are other savings in the disqualification section 
which would, perhaps, accrue to the benefit of big a business~ 
man and those are the fact that , if his interests are those of a 
company in which he is a shareholder, he is not disqualified if 
his shareholding is below , I think, 10 per cent. That is the 
proposal in the new Legislative Assembly Ordinance, whether 
or not we get that passed is another question for another time, 
but that , if that was, if we do have that provision governing 
disqualification, then a businessman with substantial in
terests would have to transfer his shares, down to a level 
where he had an interest in the company which wasn't deemed 
to be a conflict. 

He wouldn' t necessarily have to sell the company's assets. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, I just want to draw all 

Members again to the witnesses remarks , in respect to Sec
tion 7.(1), as well. 

That section does exist in there and if there is an emergency 
situation, I am sure that it could be taken into account, but I 
would like to think that 82 days, or whatever, should be sub
stantial for people to get their own house in order. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I am just a little bit 

interested and I think this is the place to ask the question, I 
think, as we are speaking of shares and so forth and so on, and 
I am wondering just how many people in the Yukon Territory 
would be really eligible to run as a candidate for this House, or 
going to be in the next election, and in the case of shares of a 
company, incorporated company, does this not include all 
shares that you would buy in mining shares, any type of 
shares, I would say? Is that not true? 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, the proposal that is contained 
in the Legislative Assembly Ordinance is that a member who 
is a shareholder in a company or a partner in a partnership, 
say, to the extent of less than 10 per cent of the total equity, is 
not fixed with the conflicts which a company has. I would 
imagine that a large number of members in this Assembly will 
have shares in public companies, which do business with the 
Government, but I would doubt whether many of them have 10 
per cent of the shares of any such public companies. 

Therefore, if they are less than ten per cent, they don't have 
to concern themselves with whether the company itself is 
dealing with the government. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 
Mr. Lengerke: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I can't add any more 

to what some of the members have said, I think it is a have 
yo.ur cake and eat it too situation. If we allow any more than 
th1rty days, I think we are being quite liberal on that. 

My question to Mr. Clegg would be, it seems to me I recall in 
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Alberta a situation where one of the members was elected and 
certainly divesting themselves of interests and then he was 
challenge?, an~ i.t .was proven .beyond, I gu~ss , doubt , that he 
had certamly m1t1ate the action to divest himself of all in
terests , but some of this was still proceeding, and there was 
some sort of appeal on that basis, but it was held that he in fact 
was doing what was required and his candidacy was valid. 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman , I don't recall the instance 
which the Member mentions. 

Mr. Lengerke: Around 1952 I think. 
Mr. Clegg: But, I have to admit that under the wording 

that we have proposed in this Ordinance if a Member elect 
was in the middle of divesting his interests which would dis
qual.ify him, this would mean that he had ~ot completed di
vestmg them and therefore he still owned them and he would 
still be disqualified. ' 

You either own something or you do not own it and there is 
an instantaneous change. The difficulty in allo~ing a grace 
p~riod , ~here~ person is apparently making an attempt to 
d1vest h1mself , IS that there is no way of determining whether 
he really is making an attempt or whether he is merely hold
ing out for a better offer. This would involve a judgmental 
decision, the person's internal objectives in not having yet, at 
that stage, concluded an agreement. A practical solution is 
always to commence negotiations well before an election and 
make the final conclusion of the agreement, for example , if 
one has decided you have to sell an interest in a company 
wh~ch ~as do.ing .a service for the government or a building 
wh1ch 1s leasmg 1ts space to them, is to make the ultimate 
transfer dependant upon your election or put it off until a date 
after that. 

Any deal can be cancelled at the last minute but I would find 
it difficult to make any suggestion as to ho~ we could draft 
something which would say that if a person is in the middle of 
doing something, he is deemed to have done it because he 
might never complete doing it. ' 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke? 
Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Chairman, I wasn't trying to suggest 

tha~ that's the k!nd ?f drafting that is needed. I was merely 
askmg the question 1f they are aware, and it is too bad that I 
can't recall all of the details with it , it was a fellow in southern 
Alberta and, as I say, he certainly demonstrated through the 
actions that he had divested himself of 90 per cent of the 
problems, and there was one particular area that I guess was 
still hanging on, and I guess by power of attorney or whatever, 
he had put it into the hands of a third party. But he was being 
challenged on that, and it was proven that he had certainly 
made the intention. The action was taking place to divest 
himself and that's the way it was ruled. I will find the case for 
you. 

Mr. Chairman: Is the Alberta legislation similar to this? 
Mr. MacDonald: Pardon? 
Mr. Chairman: Is the Alberta Legislation similar to this? 
Mr. MacDonald: No, they have drafted conflict of interest 

legislation, subsequent to those times. I haven't kept pace 
with this , but it is a fairly recent thing, Mr. Clegg would be 
more familiar with it than I am. 

Mr. Clegg: Mr. Chairman, the present situation in Alberta 
is that you can't be nominated unless you are eligible to be 
elected and to be a member and, therefore, while you hold the 
disqualification, you can't be nominated. 

This is the same in the Canada Elections Act. 
Mr. Chairman: There seems to be a consensus to leavj 

Section 29, as it now stands. 
On Clause 30 ( 

\ 
\ 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger. 
Mr. Berger: Mr. Chairman, just a question with respect to 

clearing Section 29 and Section 30 is the sam e thing. We are 
referring to the Legislative Assembly Ordinance. 

Mr. Chairman: Could you start again, Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berger: We are clearing Section 29 and 30, but we 

haven't got a Legislative Assembly Ordinance, so shouldn't 
we leave Section 29 and 30, without Clearing it. , 

Mr. Chairman: Well, in clearing it, we never limit our 
ability to go back to it and Mr. Lang earlier asked for permis
sion to reopen such sections, and we said , yes, that it was all 
right. It is merely to give some direction. 
Clause 30 agreed to 

On Clause 31 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Bon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, there is an interesting sub

section in this particular, in this Section 31 and I refer you to 
subsection 15, and, rather than by going by alphabetical order 
of candidates, we are proposing that it should be drawn out of a 
hat. 

Apparently, through experience, the way I understand it, 
they have found that the initial individual on the ballot, some
times has an edge in respect to the electorate. So, we have 
gone ahead and have decided that it should be a casting of 
ballots to decide what the order should be on the ballot box. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lengerke. 
Mr. Lengerke : Mr. Chairman, just a question of real gen

eral interest. Probably Mr. MacDonald will answer this with 
his experience, but, I have often wondered why, or how they 
arrived at the figure of 25, at least 25 persons qualifying, that 
must be on the list. How did they come up with that figure? 

I often think it should be more. It should be lOOor something. 
Mr. MacDonald: You have asked me a question I can't 

answer. The Member has asked me a question I can't answer, 
Mr. Chairman. At the outset I lost a few battles along the line 
with your legislative subcommittee on these matters, and one 
of them I was at, I was recommending ten names on the paper 
and no fees. Don't let anybody in there, but 25 is similar to the 
Canada Elections Act which you are familiar with, and so is 
the $200 fee. ·· 

I don't know whether it is a ballpark figu're or what, Mr. 
Chairman. 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger? 
Mr. Berger : Subsection (15), I can see problems there 

also. If you have again I cite the example of Campbell, if you 
have three different places where the candidates are filing 
their nomination papers and so on, how are you going to get all 
three candidates together to pull the piece of paper out of a 
hat? I think the most sensible thing to consider which is consi
dered everywhere else, is the alphabetical orders. Why come 
up with a drawing like a lottery system? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang? 
Bon. Mr. Lang: Well , Mr. Chairman, the section states 

very specifically the candidates official agents and electors 
who are present, in other words, they do not have to be there, 
but the returning officer will make it be known that this is 
going to happen, if they want to be there fine, if they are not, 
and then he will do it probably in front of other witnesses and 
pull the names out of the hat and then subsequently that will be 
the list for the ballot box. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Berger. 
Mr. Berger : With all due respect. why go through all that 

hassel and trouble? Why don't we go, like most intelligent 
people would do, in alphabetical order? 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Mcintyre. 
Mr. Mcintyre: I was going to point that the gentleman's 

initial was a B. 
Mr. Chairman: He is obviously much better off than any

one else here. 
Mr. Chairman: Mr. Fleming. 
Mr. Fleming: I was just going to say that I don 't really 

care for the section myself. I would sooner see it definitely laid 
out that it is one way or the other, rather than drawing out of a 
hat. I can see a lot of hassel over this, because, regardless of 
whether you think it is a very fair way, and everything, there 
will be the time come when somebody won't be able to make it 
that day and he will hit up a big fuss for nothing, because he 
wasn't there and he should have been there, and all the rest of 
it. If it is laid out that it will be alphabetical, that is the end of it 
and there is no argument. No room for argument: 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Lang. 
Bon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Chairman, in respect to being a can

didate for an election, it is each and everyone's, individual 
responsibility to be fully aware what the Elections Ordinance 
consists of , whether it be the Canada Elections Act, or 

Mr. Lengerke: It is a good measure anyway. whether it be this Act. · · · 
Mr. Chairman: Ms Millard? ' Betweenyourselfandyourofficialagent,youshouldbefully 
Ms Millard: Well, Mr. Chairman, we certainly can;t con- aware of this and they will be notified. We just thought it was 

sider making it $100 when there are places like Old Crow with the most non-partisian and fairest way to go about it. 
115 voters, and if they have four candidates running, they are Mr. Chairman: Mr. B.e~ger. . . 
going to run out of nominations. . , Mr. Berger: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I don't want to hang on to 

Mr. Chairman: Instead of $200, can they have 25 beaver this subject, but the. thing is, I can see there is a real problem 
pelts? arising, just temperature wise and weather-wise, and when 

I draw your attention to subsection (9) on page 27, line 18, we are having an election when the temperature can fall down 
"nomination paper" is a typog~aphical error. to 50 and 60 below, and the thing is it is quite possible people 

Why was the figure 2S per cent of the total vo.t.es received, can't-travel at that particular time. We are talking sometimes 
. a distance of up to 200·miles and more. 

instead of the 50 per cent that now exists? I am referring· to 
subsectin ( 18)? I think this is completely unnecessary, this section in there. 

Mr. Lang? . ·~ · I • • •. ~, .' 

Hon. Mr. Lang: You are referring to the Canadil EleCtions 
Act I gather, and we looked at it and we just felt that maybe 
thi~,was a little bit more equitable in r espect to the deposit that 
had to be put down. It demonstrated to the public at large that 
the candidate in question who had not be successful at least· 
had some public support and subsequently should be recog-

. nized. 

Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. -
Mr. McCall: "I would liket6 go back to t~atotherpoint th~t 

Mr,. Berger brought up, d,ealing with the principle of using .the 
alphabet. I don't really accept that suggestion, 'beCause, if I 
recall, Mr. Chairman, there was a famous soup company in 
this country that adopted the alphabet as well, and1ook at the 
mess they created. • 

Mr. Berger: But it is edible, Mr. Chairman. ..I. 
0 
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Mr. Chairman: Mr. McCall. 
Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Chairman, I would move that Mr. 

Speaker do now resume the Chair. 
Mr. Fleming: I second it. 
Mr. Chairman: It has been moved by Mr. McCall , sec

onded by Mr. Fleming, that Mr. Speaker do now resume the 
Chair. 
Motion agreed to 

Mr. Chairman: The witnesses are excused for today. 
Thank you very much. 

Mr. Speaker resumes the Chair 

Mr. Speaker: I will now call the House to order. 
May we have a report from the Chairman of Committees? 
Mr. Hibberd: Mr. Speaker, the Committee of the Whole 

considered Bill Number 12, the Electoral District Boundaries 
Ordinance, and directed me to report the same without 
amendment. The Committee has also considered Bill Number 
10, the Elections Ordinance, 1977, and directed me to report 
progress on same and asked leave to sit again. 

Mr. Speaker: You have heard the report of the Chairman 
of Committees. Are you agreed? 

Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. Speaker: Leave is so granted. The Honourable 

Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek? 
Billl2: Third Reading 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre, that Bill 
Number 12 be now read a third time. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre that Bill 
Number 12 be now read a third time. 

The Honourable Member from Pelly River? 
Mr. McCall: Yes, Mr. Speaker, I rise in objection to this 

third reading of Bill Number 12. I stated my objections in the 
Committee today, and prior to the Electoral Boundaries 
Commission Report being tabled. I would like that to be re
corded as my objections. 

Mr. Speaker: Is there any further debate? 
Are you prepared for the question? 

Some Members: Question. 
Mr. Speaker: Are you agreed? 
Some Members: Agreed. 
Mr. McCall: Disagreed. 
Mr. Speaker: I shall declare that the motion is carried. 

Motion agreed to 

'Mr. Speaker: Are you prepared to adopt the title to the 
Bill. 

Hon. Mr. Lang: Mr. Speaker, I move, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre that Bill 
Number 12 do now pass and that the title be as on the Order 
Paper. 

Mr. Speaker: It has been moved by the Honourable 
Member from Whitehorse Porter Creek, seconded by the 
Honourable Member from Whitehorse North Centre, that Bill 
Number 12 do now pass and that the title be as on the Order 
Paper. 
Motion agreed to 

Mr. Speaker: May I have your further pleasure? The Hon
ourable Member from Whitehorse Riverdale? 
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Mr. Lengerke: Mr. Speaker , I move that we do now calli. 
5 o'clock. 

Ms Millard: I second that. 
Mr. Speaket': It has been moved by the Honourable 

Member from Whitehorse Riverdale, seconded by the Hun-
ourable Member from Ogilvie that we do now call it 5 o'eloc!L 
Motion agreed to 

Mr. Speaker: This House now stands adjourned until 10 
a.m. tomorrow. 
Adjourned 

The following Legislative Returns were Tabled 
(November Z8, 1977) 

77-2-24 

Special Education Needs for Indian Students 
(Written Question No. 3) 

77-2-25 

Extra Pipeline Related Costs 
(Written Question No. 22) 

77-2-26 

Private Business Restricting Employment on Pipeline 
(Written Question No. 16) 

77-2-27 

Program Financing Act/Health Services 
(Written Question No.23) 

The following Sessional Paper was Tabled 
(November Z8, 1977) 

77-2-26 

Electrical Public Utilities Board Report 



1977 (llecond) Seooion 

Kr. Speaker, 
Milabera of the Aaa-.bly 

On Nov-...ber 7, 1977, Kra. R.tfateon, the llonourable 
H~r for IO.I..lane, aaked t.he tollowinq queations 

taould. the O.part:ment of Education identit'y 
the apeclal need• ot Indian etudenta 
which need to be accoiiiiDOdated or allowance• 
ude tor in inteqrated achool ayat_,.. in the 
YUkon. 

The a.n.-wer to tl\e above question ia •• tollowas 

The Department of Education is preaantly 
coaapilinq a apecial needa &IIIISJD.Int related to the 
native atud.anta attendinq our achoola. Once the 
aaaeanant ia completed, it will be tabled in this 
leqialature tor the information of the "'amber a. 

28 November, 1977 ~c._~ · 
Dan L.anq~ 

IEISUJM 1\ETIJllN # l.S 
1977 (Second) Session 

Hr. ~aker , 
Members of the Msallblr 

en Novallber 23 , 15177, the 1-bnoura.ble Mer!ber ftaft lithltehone Rherd&.le 
a.sked the follatti.n& question: 

"In rew;>lY. to a:( question ~f No~r 7, 15177 with respect to the 
$200 111lhon llne of credit to fl.J\anCe pipeline i.q:>act costs 1 
was ~ed that 1 there has been considerable plannil\a and 
projectl.n& of possible extraordinary pipeline related costs 
by Departments.' 

Hy question is: 

1. ~~!!.s<flY what Federal and Territorial Departments are 

2. What specific 'possible extnonlinary pipeline related 
cosu 1 haw been identified to date?" 

The answers to the above questions are as follOIIIS: 

1. t\aina Mly/J\Ole, 1977 all YTG Departlll!nts were asked to 
i dentify anticipated incr<RntaJ costs mae to pipeline 
~t for inclusion in the YTG llopon to the Lysyk Inquiry. 
In Soptooi>or, 1977 all YTG Departlll!l\ts reviewed their previous 
sulaissions, and ~ted thelo as rt~<~ui red. This review and 
~tina of ~~nticipated pipeline n!lated requin!IIO!lts is a 
C<X~tinulna process to the point where prognas are dewloped 
and included in tho notw..l bud&etary process for review 
&Del approval by this Asseoi:>ly. 

I a adruod thot Federal Deparnoonts have been asked to 
conca.:t siail&r Plamina exercises so that the Federal 
Treasury Boar.! anticipate -.><Is on the Federal 
budaotary processes before they arise. As 141ebon have 
beeD. &dvised, however. Federal pipeline related cons 
will not be charioable to Yukon tax revenues or flnlod 
fn:a the proposed $200 llillion advance on taxes. 

2. Many inc,._,taJ pipeline related costs are possible and 
,_ of those were tentatively identified in the YTG 
Ropon to tho Lysyk Inquiry. As specific prognas are 
developed to a fim costina point they will be included in 
ota Main or S.Wle.ntal Estiates for Ud..s House to review 
&Del "''PTT""· 

lloveoi:>er 24, 1977 
/ , ... ' . 

( ,{ ·/ • · . . · ' L ,t ~ •·c >--< 
X.R. PUrson 
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(1977 Second Seia1onl 

Kr. Speaker, 
He.mbert of The AJacnblX 

on HovU\ber 2l•t, 1977, Hr, s. McCall aaked. the follovint 
queJtion: 

•Haa your office or any depar~•nt of the 
Governaent ot the Yukon received any 
r epreaentation troll. any part ot the private 
bulineta sector at larqe with the viev ot 
askinq the Administration of thia Governaent 
to introduce leqillation or retulationa 
which would 1 in effect, re1trlct mov•ent ot 
any person a l ready work i ng trom. aeekinq 
employment on any part o! t he pipelin• 
eonttruction project?• 

The answer to the question above ill a a tol l owa: 

I sUbmitted the question to each Executive C~ittee 
Meaber and each one ot thua replied in the n*9ative. 

Ill'. $tleoll .... 

!MILmJI .,. (I ., 
um ......... i•l 

!!o!ttl'l Of tile At!Pbh 

On llo..,..r n. 1m Ill's. lilt- ,,...,. t11e followt"t w~u ..... ti•: 

llbuld tile 111n1!ter of -· ~~~-· ,..,., t111! - wttll 

:~·!:,rr.:";.. ~::= ;:.!;:!1l:";'' .. ~- "-'"' ~t 
Tl!o lnt•r S9 tl!o 1 .... 1 MftiO!! 1! II foJll!l : 

Etub11!11od Progr- Ft ... cl"' 1! 1 tnotftr of f-.1 f""" to 
provtncu/torrttortu for Hosptul lntun-. 11Mtca1 C.N 11111 
Post Soc-r1 Education. lutcally EPF ts fundM 11y tile ti'IMftr 
of tnc- ux potnts tn tho foN of lncre11eo1 trtnt·l•·ll"' of Inc• 
Texas and 1 trensfar of Cllh. Tile flsul errt-fttl 1tlh1att• 
provldls for tile e11ocattoo bo- tho t- PI'Oir- of tile 
toto1 EPF Cllh t r tnt Oft tile bash of U75·76 pti'Utlt.fe tiiiN of tile 
tott1 fodtrt1 contrtbuttoos for 01ch of tile thNI PI'09r--
Hosptto1 lnsuranc1 49.H , lltdtcore 17.711ncl Post ~.,. 
Educ1t1on JZ.U. Tilts porcons.,. bretkout -ver, ts 11..,.17 
lcld•tc u tile cootrtbuttOfts IN IHICOftdlttona1. 

hch )'tlr tile por coptu cuh contribution '""" to tile - ~rtt• 
;~~ ~~h tn GIIP coup11d wttll till ever191 tM4111 -1attoo 

In lddtttOft to EPF tile fldtrt1 tOVt.....,t Mkll -Oftdltl-1 
po,-onts of $20.00 por coplto tn 1977/71 to Yukon for Ex~ 
~:!t~.c~· 11!:~1 l-nt h IICI11ttdtteh yur by tile ti'GWth 

Hov-r 21, 1971 
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